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Director’s Statement

EEHE

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or
the “Directors”) of SunCorp Technologies Limited (the
“Company”), | present to you the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of review, the Group mainly engaged in
(i) the sales and marketing of residential telephones and
related products; (i) the processing and trading of used
computer-related components business; (iii) the money
lending business; (iv) the securities brokerage, placing
and underwriting business and (v) the B2B cross-border
e-commerce business.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately HK$173.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.2% as
compared with the revenue of approximately HK$202.5
million in 2019. In relation to the Group’s revenue,
approximately 16.8% resulted from sales of telephone
and related products, approximately 23.6% resulted
from the processing and trading of used computer-
related components, approximately 11.9% resulted
from interest income earned from money lending
business, approximately 0.6% contributed from securities
brokerage, placing and underwriting business and
approximately 47.1% contributed by B2B cross-border
e-commerce business.

Gross profit from operation for the year under review
was approximately HK$25.6 million, representing a mild
increase of approximately 0.9% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$25.4 million in 2019.
The Group’s net loss for the year was approximately
HK$70.1 million, which was mainly due to the provision
for expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade, other and
loan receivables of approximately HK$88.0 million
recognised during 2020.
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As at 31 December 2020, the gross amount of loan
portfolio held by the Group was approximately HK$269.5
million and interest income earned from money lending
business was approximately HK$20.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

In view of the highly unpredictable business environment,
we are evaluating different business segments within
the Group and reposition our strategy and business
operation in more optimistic business segments. For the
year 31 December 2020, the revenue derived from our
B2B cross-border e-commerce segment has expanded
by approximately 23.9% from approximately HK$65.9
million to approximately HK$81.7 million as compared
to the year 2019. The outbreak of COVID-19 has led to
more e-commerce business activities. On the other hand,
the Board expects that the future development in sales of
residential telephones and related products will be limited
and the market will be declined due to the evolution
of technology and the change in consumer behaviours.
Therefore, we will continue to deploy more resources to
the e-commerce business in the future.

The Group will continue to seek potential investment
and business opportunities for broadening its income
stream and further development of the existing business
segments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend our sincere thanks to our
customers, suppliers and staff for their continued support
and contribution to the Group during the year.

Zhu Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB BT

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$173.7 million
which represented a decrease of approximately 14.2% as
compared to the corresponding figure for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The gross profit for the year under review was
approximately HK$25.6 million as compared to
approximately HK$25.4 million for the previous year.

During the year, the B2B cross-border e-commerce
business continued to contribute a significant percentage
to our revenue. We are optimistic about this business
segment and will continue to deploy more resources
to capture more market opportunities as and when
appropriate. On the other hand, the sales and marketing
of electronic equipment and related products was still an
important source of income of the Group. In addition,
the financial arm of the Group comprising of securities
brokerage, placing and underwriting business and money
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lending business also contributed to the revenue of the
Group during the year. The revenue, the gross profit and
net (loss)/profit for each business segment for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out as below:

Used

Telephones computer-

and related related

equipment  components

EXENAE “FEN

R HBRAH

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue Wz 29,120 40,974

Gross profit EH 61 1,882

Net (loss)/profit (BEFE) / (1,681) 344
A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Current ratio Bt X
Gearing ratio (defined as the total BERBEEE(EER

borrowings divided by total equity)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash on hand
of approximately HK$21.6 million, net current assets
of approximately HK$253.8 million, total assets of
approximately HK$299.2 million and shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$255.0 million.

The Group generally financed its operations through
internally-generated cash flows and Shareholders’ equity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised share capital

The authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$600,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.006 each upon the share consolidation of the
Company with effect from 26 March 2020 in which every
20 shares had been consolidated into 1 share.

Issued share capital

As at 1 January 2020, the issued share capital
of the Company was HK$4,564,719 divided into
15,215,731,320 shares of HK$0.0003 each.

With effect from the completion of the share
consolidation on 26 March 2020, the issued share capital
of the Company was changed from HK$4,564,719
divided into 15,215,731,320 shares of HK$0.0003 each
to HK$4,564,719 divided into 760,786,566 shares of
HK$0.006 each.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB W R

On 25 August 2020, the Company had placed
152,150,000 new shares at placing price of HK$0.09 per
placing share.

As at 31 December 2020, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$5,477,619 divided into 912,936,566
shares of HK$0.006 each.

EXCHANGE RATE

Most of sales in the current year were denominated in
United States dollars, whilst the majority of the Group’s
expenses were denominated in United States dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Although the Group
currently does not maintain any hedging policy to
hedge against foreign exchange exposure that may arise
from the above transactions, the management team
continuously assesses the foreign currency exposure,
with an aim to minimize the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuation on the Group’s business operations.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On 5 August 2020, the Company entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on
a best effort basis, up to 152,150,000 placing shares at
the placing price of HK$0.09 per placing share to not less
than six placees who and whose beneficial owners are
independent third parties (the “Placing”). The placing
shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the General
Mandate.

The Placing was completed on 25 August 2020. The net
proceeds (after deducting the placing commission and
other related expenses and professional fees) from the
Placing amounted to approximately HK$13.7 million. The
net proceeds were intended to be used as the general
working capital of the Group and for improving the cash
position of the Group.

Up to the date of this report, the Group had fully

untilized the entire amount of the net proceeds as
intended.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

RZE-ZZEFNAZ-Z+THH AR
AEEREREEKM0.09%8 T 2 i
EBACE152,150,0000%F A% 1 °

RZBE-_ZEF+_A=+—H" 'K
NAlZ B EITRARS,477,619%
JT 9 3F /912,936,566 % & i% M &
0.0067& 7T Z B 7 °

& =

RERRNZAEBDHEGAETY
B MAKEZRAXKEDAEXT
ARERERIE-BEAEER
Al 30 4 5% B AR ¥R R DA S b b
MR FATREELE ZINER R - EE
EEEGRSemETGINERR
SHERINE R E AN RE XL E
ZEEREHE-

SERBRMBEREAR

RZE_ZEFNAAH AARAFE]
MR EWE B ARRE A KRG
HEAEERERE (AQAFEES
BEMBAR)BRAREZNE LIRS
&g A BB 5 %152,150,0000% fid
ERD - REERTREER?X0.09
B MZERARAREERZES
ABBLFEF=7 (BEEHE]) -
EROBIRE — R R kT

ffEEBEERNR _ZT_ZFF N\ A
TT-REAEK -RREEEZMBNRIE
FHE(KIKRESHAe R EMIER
X EEZEER%)AK13,700,000
BIL e A RQREBE TS RIEFEA
EREB —REEESRHRER
EEZHESHKR-

BEAREAH AEECDEF S
BEERPTSRRFR 2 AR -



Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, total market value for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
the Group was approximately HK$61.1 million (2019:
approximately HK$39.9 million). The Board considers that
the investments with market value accounting for more
than 5% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2020 as significant investments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$10.6 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: unrealized loss
of approximately HK$14.8 million). For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group recognised realized loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$0.4 million (2019: realized loss of
approximately HK$0.5 million).

Detail of the top financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, in terms of market value as at 31 December
2020 are as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB BT

AMCO is a company listed in Hong Kong in which it and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) manufacture
and sale of medical devices products; (ii) manufacture
and sale of plastic moulding products; (iii) provision
of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works; (iv)
provision of money lending; and (v) investment in
securities.

Looking forward, the Board believes that the future
performance of the listed investments held by the
Group will be volatile and substantially affected
by overall environment, equity market conditions,
investor sentiment and the business performance and
development of the investee companies.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Board may exercise its discretion to grant
share options to the executive directors and employees as
an incentive to their contribution to the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
(resigned with effect from 31 December 2020)

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry
(appointed with effect from 31 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. LU Bei Lin

(resigned with effect from 31 December 2020)
Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. WONG Sin Fai, Cynthia

AUDITORS

McMillian Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Hong Kong:
Robertsons

Bermuda:

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
HSBC
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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Corporate Information
NEEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

35/F, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.suncorptech.com.hk

STOCK CODE
1063
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Details of Directors and Chief Executives

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Zhu Yugqi, aged 29, is currently assistant to general
manager of a company located in Shenzhen, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Chow Hei Yin Terry, aged 43, executive director of
the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree of Busi-
ness Administration from Central Queensland University.
Mr. Chow has more than twenty years of experience
in relation to business development and sales and
marketing. He also has extensive experience in business
administration and entrepreneurial management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chow is a director of a local
company engaging in the trading of Chinese medicine
and Mr. Chow is mainly responsible for the sales and
marketing of the company. Mr. Chow is currently the
vice-president of The Hong Kong Medicine Dealers’ Guild.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ma Kin Ling, aged 38, independent non-executive
director of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy
and Law from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ma is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Hong Kong Finance Investment
Holding Group Limited (HK Stock Code: 007) and a Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of Xinyang
Maojian Group Limited (HK Stock Code: 362).

Man Yuan, aged 33, independent non-executive director
of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Marketing from the Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology. Mr. Man was the general manager in an
internet company located in Shenzhen, the PRC during
2013 to May 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Government Report together with annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to high standards of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal control,
trans-parency, independence and accountability to all
shareholders.

Throughout the financial year of 2020, the Group
had applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020; and unless otherwise stated, which in
the opinion of the Board, are not appropriate to follow.

The Company conducts periodic review on its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company can
meet the requirements of the CG Code on an on-going
basis. The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are summarized as below:
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

The Board is mandated with promoting the success of the
Company by providing leadership and supervising control
of the business of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Company has the
following members on the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
page 11 of this Annual Report. Under the Listing Rules,
every listed issuer is required to have at least three INEDs,
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of INEDs has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules and represented one-
third of the total Board members.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. Regular review will be made
on the Board composition to ensure the Company has a
balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company.
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TERERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
which has come into effect from 1 April 2012, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company follows a formal and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The
Board will consider on a regular basis whether necessary
changes are needed in respect of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to identify suitably
qualified candidates if there is such a need. In accordance
with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), every newly appointed Director shall hold office
till the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years. For the avoidance of doubt, all Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND PRACTICES

(continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, in view of the current nature of the Company,
the Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
chairman or chief executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.

In this circumstances, the Board considers that the
present practice has already addressed the concerns of
the CG Code in this respect.

Non-Executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term subject to re-election. None of the existing INEDs
are engaged on specific term, and it constituted a
deviation of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.
However all Directors, including INEDs are subject to re-
tirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
at least once every three years under the Bye-laws. In
the circumstances, the Board considers that the present
practice has already addressed the concerns of the CG
Code in this respect.
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CEERRE

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

During the financial year of 2020 under review, 4 board

ESEERRBRESHER

R-ZE_ZEFOBEVBRFEARN &

meetings were held and the attendance of each Director EERTTHRER REEZH
at the Board meetings was as follows: EERWT :
Attendance/
Number
of Board
meetings
HER EF
Name of Directors: EENA: BERARHY
Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON Malcolm Stephen
(Note 1) JACOBS-PATON 5e 4 (74t 1) 3/4
Mr. ZHU Yugi KFARE 2/4
Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry (Note 2) AEELLE (Hat2)
Ms. LU Bei Lin (Note 3) @%Wﬁi«%&ﬁ 4/4
Mr. MAN Yuan m B % 4/4
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRRZELE 4/4
Notes: K&t -
1. Mr. Malcolm Stephen Jacobs-Paton resigned as an 1. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON 7t

executive director with effect from 31 December 2021.

2. Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry was appointed as an executive
director with effect from 31 December 2021.

3. Ms. Lu Bei Lin resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 31 December 2021.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on
an adhoc basis. The Bye-laws allows Board meetings
to be conducted by means of telephones or other
communications equipment and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and
signed by all Directors from time to time when nec-essary
unless such as are temporarily unable to act through ill-
health or disability.
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Corporate Governance Report

NUMBERS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
(continued)

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and
reasonable notice for non-regular Board meetings are
given to all Directors so as to ensure that each of them
had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are sent in full to
all Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before
execution and approval. All Board minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the
Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Board opines that it is not necessary to appoint a
Chairman or Chief Executive and daily operation of the
Group is delegated to Executive Directors, department
heads and various committees.
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CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
for overseeing particular aspect of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established
with clearly defined written terms of reference which
set out the scope and authorities of the respective
committee. The terms of reference are available to
shareholders for inspection on the Company’s website.
Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary,
are circulated to all Board members and the committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decision
and recommendations where appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are:

Audit Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan

Remuneration Committee

Mr. MAN Yuan (Chairman)
Mr. MA Kin Ling

Nomination Committee

Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman)
Mr. MAN Yuan
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of the audit of the Company. The Audit
Committee was established in March 2000 with written
terms of reference and is currently consists of two
members, of whom all are INEDs.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
appointment of auditors on an annual basis including a
review of the audit scope and the audit fees; ensuring
the objectivity and independence of the auditors,
meeting with the auditors to discuss issues arising from
the final audit and any matters the auditors suggest to
discuss; reviewing the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
risk management and the internal controls; engaging a
professional consultant as the Group's Internal Auditor
to discharge the duties of the Group’s Internal control
and risk management, reviewing the annual and interim
report in accordance with the accounting policies and
practices and relevant accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements; serving as a focal
point for communication between other Directors and
the auditors in respect of the duties relating to financial
reporting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company's policy
when necessary.
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lr'r xl_\:h
TEEERME
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEZEE ()
Audit Committee (continued) EREEE (&)
During the financial year of 2020 under review, three RZZE_ZFLRBEVRFEN &
committee meetings were held and the attendance of BERITT=Z2Rgx FZEEX
each committee member at the committee meeting was BZHEBERET:
as follows:
Attendance/
Number of
Committee
meetings
attended
HER 8
Name of Committee members ZEERBEMS BERXY
Mr. MA Kin Ling (Chairman) Bz LE (£E) 3/3
Ms. LU Bei Lin (Note 1) BERE M AL (HfaET) 3/3
Mr. MAN Yuan m Bl 5 3/3
Note: B &t -

director with effect from 31 December 2020. S]

—EFE+_A=t+—HRE

1. Ms. Lu Bei Lin resigned as an independent non-executive 1. BEEMZLTEBREBIFENTES
—_F

N

During the committee meetings held in the financial R-IE_ZTFPBRFERTZESR
year of 2020, the Audit Committee performed the work ggxRt BREEgERBTZL
summarized below: ERR AN T -

- Reviewing the financial reports and results — ERXTEESEIA FHAU
announcement for the following financial period THBHB 2 EmERER
before sub-mission to the Board for approval: NG

- for the year ended 31 December 2019 - BE_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—

HIEFE
- for six months ended 30 June 2020 — BEZZ-FTFRA=THL
/\f.ﬂ

-~ Reviewing the auditors’ independence and report - TﬁEﬂLV%ﬁEWZﬁIﬁ&%FﬁE
recommending to the Board for the re-appointment RE TEZEFSNEERR
of the external auditors at the forthcoming annual %‘EEK = FENZEINEZE
general meeting. Bl o
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The financial reports and the results announcement of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate dis-closure have
been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established for the
purposes of ensuring there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration for
the Directors. No Directors and executives can determine
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
was established in March 2000 with written terms of
reference and is currently consists of two members, of
whom both are INEDs, namely Man Yuan (Chairman) and
Ma Kin Ling.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice when necessary.

One resolution has been passed by the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2020.
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CEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in
1 April 2012 with the written terms in compliance
with Code A.5.2. There are two members in the
Nomination Committee comprising two INEDs, namely
Ma Kin Ling (Chairman) and Man Yuan. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

Two resolutions have been passed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December
2020.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable
and balanced development of the Company and also to
enhance the quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointment will be
considered against object criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four
Directors. Two of the Directors are INEDs and independent
of management, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also
characterized by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of professional background, gender and skills.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy. The
nomination policy sets out the selection criteria in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate as
Director. Such criteria include but not limited to academic
background, qualifications, relevant experiences in
the industry, character and integrity of the proposed
candidate. Suitable candidate can be nominated by any
Director for the Nomination Committee’s consideration.
Nomination Committee should evaluate the personal
profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as
set out in the nomination policy and undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of each proposed candidate.
After comprehensive assessment, the Nomination
Committee will then make appropriate recommendations
to the Board for approval. All appointments of Directors
will ultimately be based on merit while taking into
account the measurable objectives with regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination
policy and the Board diversity policy on a regular basis
and discuss any revision that may be required, and
recommends any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed
the structure, size and competition of the Board, as well
as the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee considers that an
appropriate balance of diversity is maintained on the
current Board, which comprises members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. The
Nomination Committee has discussed and reviewed the
retirement and re-election of Directors and other relevant
issues.
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TERERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were
complied with. The Directors believe that they have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgment and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have ensured the financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis.
The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55
to 63.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial and management
reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Directors have an acknowledgement that it is
responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board has engaged external
professional party to review the risk management
and internal control systems which were included the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control, to resolve material internal control defects, the
procedure and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information and the purchasing
and payment cycles and procedures of the business. The
Board will review this on an ongoing basis to ensure an
efficient system is in place.

The Board is responsible for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems. The Board must ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains effective
risk management and internal control systems to meet
the objectives and safe guard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At
the same time, the Group endeavors to identify risks,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems which
are compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) -
Integrated Framework 2013 principles. They are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures in
order to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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CEERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Group has established a risk management policy
which sets out the process of identification, evaluation
and management of the principal risks affecting the
business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and
assessing principal risks within its divisions on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to
manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
activities, attending quarterly meetings with each
division to ensure principal risks are properly
managed, and new or changing risks are identified
and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with our
internal controls, ensures the risk associated with our
different business units are effectively controlled in line
with the Group's risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has conducted an annual review
on whether it is necessary to set up an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s relatively simple cor-
porate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit
department, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control System
(continued)

The Group engaged an external consultant, for internal
control and risk management to conduct review on
the internal control system and risk management of
the Group during the year. The review covers certain
procedures on the sales and marketing of residential
telephone products, and make recommendations
for improving and strengthening the internal control
system. No significant area of concern that may affect
the financial, operational, compliance, control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources,
staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board concluded that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems were in place
and effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of
insider information, the Group has adopted a policy
on disclosure of insider information with the aim to
ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality re-
quirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of
the inside information.
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TERERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year of 2020, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors,
McMillian Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited were set out
bellows:

Services rendered for the Group

B
N
=
S

Audit services

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Sin Fai Cynthia (“Ms. Wong"”) was the
company secretary of the Company. She is responsible to
the Board for ensuring the board procedures are followed
and that the Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments.

Up to the date of this report, Ms. Wong has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. Based on specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Directors have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year
of 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their participation in such
meetings.

At least twenty (20) clear business days’ notice for annual
general meeting and at least ten (10) clear business
days’ notice for all other general meetings are given to
shareholders of the Company before the meeting.

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings and any questions from
shareholders regarding the voting by way of poll will be
answered. Poll results will be posted on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the date of
the conclusion of the general meeting.

To promote communication, the Company maintains
website at www.suncorptech.com.hk where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted.
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Ir'r~ =+
TEERHRE
DIVIDEND POLICY R E B
The Company has adopted a policy on payment of KARRZ jli AR —18
dividends in January 2019. The Dividend Policy aims at i’ E /)fEH[E& SHREEERS

enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating NAIERE ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬂx% NIRE %
the members and investors to make informed investment MHEARRBE M MIBERERE
decisions relating to the Company.

Pursuant to the dividend policy, the Board may take into BEREREX EFEEEREERF
account of, among other matters, the following factors MR ERBEZRIERMNRARKREUHAK
when considering the declaration of interim dividend and NAIRRBL AR AIEEZE R (HP A
proposing the payment of final dividend for the approval BN THEZ:

of the Company’s shareholders:

() the Group’'s actual and expected financial () AEEZEBRRTEHMBES:

performance;
(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements, (i) AEBEHEEEEFTK
capital expenditure requirements and futures Lﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁj:&ﬂiiﬁ)%):?r%'

expansion plans;

(i) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the (i) NEBE 2 RBABF KA 9k &7

Group; 1

(iv) the Group's liquidity position; (ivy XEBZREBESMN

(v) general economic conditions and other internal or (v) EERE&EM R & H A e ¥ A
external factors that may have an impact on the EEEBRIMBEERMRRE
business or financial performance and position of the EREBZNESIMERE
Group;

(vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions; (vi) EEREBRS

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant. (i) EFER R AMEEZEMA

fib B % o
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
significant change in the Company's memorandum of
association and bye-laws.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s
interest and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for share-
holders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put
forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the SEHK website and the Company'’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

RIGHT TO CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Special general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company or
by such shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionists”) (as the case may be) pursuant to
Article 58 of the Bye-Laws. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company or the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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TERERRE

RIGHT TO CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (continued)

Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Bye-Laws for convening a
special general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals at general meeting of the Company by sending
the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Yuqi
Executive Director

25 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG GOVERNANCE

Sustainability is an essential part of the Group's
values. We are committed to promoting sustainable
development by incorporating the environmental, social
and governance (ESG) concept into our business decision-
making. In order to preserve the quality of life for both
present and future generations, the Group strives to
reduce its impacts on the environment and contribute to
society through engaging in various charity activities.

By conducting materiality assessment, the Group has
identified the key ESG topics which are “relevant” and
“important” to our business. In particular, the efficient
use of energy and water, health and safety, supply chain
management, product responsibility and anti-corruption
are the issues of highest priority.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report covers the Group overall performance in
the environmental and social aspects of our business
operations in Hong Kong and the PRC office from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (“year” or
“2020"), unless otherwise stated.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Use of Resources

The Group's core businesses are sales and marketing of
residential telephone and related products, the processing
and trading of used computer-related components,
securities brokerage, placing and underwriting, money
lending and B2B cross-border e-commerce. Due to the
nature of our business activities, we do not consume a
large amount of resources.
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B HENERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Nonetheless, the Group has formulated a set of policies
and measures to enhance the efficiency of our resources
usage such as energy, water and other materials. For
instance, we encourage our employees to reduce the
usage of papers by adopting internet communication,
assessing the need of printing, applying duplex printing
and reusing single-sided printed papers if possible.

Apart from that, for office stationery procurement, we
give preference to environmental-friendly suppliers who
provide the brand of paper approved by the Programme
for the Endorsement of Forest Certification ("PEFC").

Energy Use and Efficiency

The Group does not have any business activities that
involve the use of direct energy. Electricity consumption
is the sole contributor to the energy use in our offices. In
2020, the total amount of electricity consumed was 38.4
MWh (2019: 17 MWh); and the energy consumption
intensity was 0.008 MWh per square feet (2019: 0.001
MWh per sq. ft).

To improve energy efficiency of the Group, we
implemented a series of energy-saving measures including
encouraging the use of electric fans and switching the
lighting of the office to more energy-efficient fluorescent
lamps.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)

Water Use and Efficiency

The Group’s business operations do not involve any
water-intensive activities and our offices only consume an
insignificant amount of water. In 2020, the total amount
of water use was 17.4 cubic meters; and the water
consumption intensity was 0.003 cubic meter per square
foot of floor area.

As the efficient use of water is one of the Group’s
priorities, we will continue to monitor our water
consumption and search for areas of improvement in
water efficiency in the future.

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group only uses a small amount of packaging
materials, i.e. cartons, in its primary businesses. In 2020,
the total amount of packaging materials used for finished
products was 0.3 tonnes.

Emissions

Since the Group's primary businesses are sale of
consumer goods and provision of financial services, most
of our operations are conducted in offices and thus
emissions generated from us are relatively immaterial. As
part of our efforts to minimize greenhouse gas ("GHG")
emissions, the Group applies energy saving measures in
the workplace, including the installation of an energy-
efficient lighting system, setting an optimal temperature
for air-conditioning and switching off electrical appliances
after office hours.

During the year, there were no cases in relation to non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
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B HENERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Emissions (continued)

GHG Emissions

In 2020, the Group’s total GHG emissions was 25.0
tonnes of CO,-equivalent (2019: 13.7 tonnes of CO,-e).
The primary source of GHG emissions is “energy indirect”
emissions resulting from the generation of purchased
electricity consumed within the workplace; and indirect
emissions due to electricity used for processing fresh
water and sewage made up the remaining portion.
The increase in emissions was largely because all staff
members kept working in office during 2020.

KPI BARENMIEE

BE-BEEBEN
#E2 - EEFN

Scope 1 — Direct emissions

Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions
Total GHG Emissions EREBAEE
The GHG intensity for the year was 0.005 tonnes of CO,-
equivalent per sq. ft floor area.

Waste Generation

The Group does not generate any hazardous waste in
its operations. Non-hazardous waste from the Group’s
operations was mainly office paper but the management
of the Group believes that this portion of waste is
insignificant.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our businesses, the Group's activities
do not have significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources. However, to minimize possible
environmental impacts related to our activities, products
and services, the Group shall:

e identify any impacts on the environment and natural
resources from our operations and set targets to
reduce associated stress,

e prevent pollution, reduce waste and minimize
resource consumption for all daily operations,

e comply with relevant laws and requirements
which relate to the Company and its subsidiaries’
environmental aspects, and

e educate, train and motivate our employees to
develop a sustainable mentality that enables them to
conduct business activities in a responsible manner.

RIE - HEMERHRSE

RREAE (F)
REHEBRER

ERBPMOEBEE AEBHE
LERPITEHREREAREREL
EARE- RN REERLHMAL
LA EmARGYRENTE
REEE

e BAHMEZHREIBERE
R ERFE - WERE B R AR
HHBEE S

o BILEBR-BIREREFSRD
ERRRBEEZERBEM:

o ETARBRHEKE AR RIR

BEBNEARERENR K

o HE HBIKBEIEES KA
BERBUSHUHRERE
ZHARRER LS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 47

37



38

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HENERRE

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group advocates for a communal spirit that thrives
on mutual respect and equal opportunities. The Group
strictly complies to laws and regulations related to
equal opportunities, including but not limited to the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. To ensure diversity and equality, our selection
process is non-discriminatory and solely based on the
employees’ performance, experience and skills. Our
employees are also encouraged to discuss their targets in
job advancement and career development with the senior
management.

The Employment of Children Regulations and Employment
Ordinance prohibits all employers from engaging child
and forced labour in the workforce, and regulates the
hours of work and general conditions of employment
of young persons in industrial undertakings. With
compliance to relevant laws and regulations, the Group
does not engage in any forced or child labour. The Staff
Code of Conduct is enclosed in the Compliance Manual,
which is readily accessible to all employees.

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees, the
Group is committed to offering professional development
opportunities and a healthy working environment for all
employees. Salaries and wage rates are usually subjected
to an annual review that is based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group
provides equal opportunities for all employees along
with competitive remuneration and strongly encourages
internal promotion.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment (continued)

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on
the performance of employees with reference to the
market condition. For the purpose of ensuring there are
formal and transparent procedures for setting policies
on the remuneration for the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee was established.

The Group also reviews the compensation and benefits
programmes regularly to ensure its compensation and
benefits packages remain competitive. Over the years, the
Group has introduced a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) by which the Board may exercise
its discretion to grant share options to Directors and
employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
employment and labour standards laws and regulations
for the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of
11 employees (2019: 18), including operational office,
sales and marketing, finance, company secretarial and
securities brokerage divisions.
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BIE - A BMEAHRE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HEHE (E)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued) EBRERSEIEE (&
Employment (continued) 1EIE (&)

Employment turnover rate by gender

RUERESBE I RAE
Male Female
S g
Employees who left employment (%) 11% 0%

BER B T (%)

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured and
caring environment for employees to enhance their sense
of belonging as well as work effectiveness.

Health and Safety

The Group recognizes the importance of maintaining a
safe, effective and congenial work environment for our
staff. Hence, the Group has put various occupational
health and safety measures in place and regularly
performs checks on the work environment and staff
facilities. For example, we have taken ergonomic
principles into consideration when designing the
workstation to accommodate the body features and
limitations of users.

The outbreak of the coronavirus (Covid-19) in Wuhan
was the largest challenge for the health authorities in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group has a set of

policies to protect our staff:

— all public area would be performed disinfection on
timely basis;

— provide mask and disinfection supplies to all staff;

— request each staff to report their health status
everyday; and

— request each Department Head to monitor the health
status of its staff on timely basis.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year.
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Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EAI{EREBEET ABRIGLE

Number of work-related fatalities
HTERERIT A
Rate of work-related fatalities

R ITEBRIL T

Lost days due to work injury

AIEMBLANIERH

Number of lost-days as a result of work injuries

HIEmBRNIERH
Development and Training

The Group understands that human capital plays a
substantial part of the business. As a listed corporation,
the Group is mindful of the continuous development
of the regulatory environment and has established a
practice in gathering the changes of regulations and
ensuring its Directors, responsible officers, licensed
representatives and other employees attend necessary
training programmes. Pursuant to the requirement of
Listing Rules, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses
or reading relevant materials relating to corporate
governance and regulations to consolidate their
knowledge and skills.

In 2020, the Directors attended trainings regarding anti-
corruption and ESG-related updates by HKEX.; whereas
our employees attended seminars organised by the Hong
Kong Securities Professionals Association and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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R - HEMERRSE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Labour Standards

In compliance with the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, no child or forced labour
was employed in the Group’s operations during the year.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

To comply with the laws and regulations, the Group has
established stringent internal controls to procuring goods
and materials through a fair and unbiased tender process.
The selection of subcontractors and suppliers is based on
their fulfilment of specifications, standards, product and
service quality as well as associated support services.

The Group carefully selects qualified suppliers to
ensure that the entire production process is in line with
corresponding standards and rules. The Group not
only requests its new suppliers to submit a review of
all relevant documents, but conducts rigorous checks
to assess their reliability. The Group also carries out
inspections and assessments regularly to review our
suppliers” standards, and terminates collaboration with
unqualified suppliers.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that good customer and after-sales
services are the keys to the success of our business. In
order to respond promptly to the needs of our customers,
the Group set up a series of communication channels
among different business units to handle customers’
queries.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

The Group also emphasises the importance of protecting
and safe-guarding customers’ privacy, especially for
money lenders’ information. In compliance with
provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, we
are cautious with the collection, handling and usage of
customers’ personal data.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
data privacy-related laws and regulations during the year.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds high standards of integrity and does
not condone any unethical behaviour in our business.
Employees are prohibited to request, receive or accept
any forms of benefit from any persons, company or
organization which have business transactions with the
Group. All staff members are reminded to avoid situations
that may lead to or involve any conflict of interest.

To effectively monitor market misconduct such as staff
dealing, money laundering and insider trading, the Group
has set up a series of policies detailed in the Compliance
Manual which is readily accessible to all employees.

In particular, the Group has established a Code of
Conduct and stipulated in the Compliance Manual.
The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") has
published Guidance Notes which summarises what
money laundering and terrorist financing are and what
the legislation requires. The Guidance Notes also explains
the procedures of internal control which the SFC expects
to be followed by registered person in a range of areas.
The management does not tolerate corruption, bribery,
extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of the business
operations.
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R - HEMERRSE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)

Anti-corruption (continued)

Additionally, the Group has implemented an effective
Internal Manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and has provided separate channels for the
reporting of any suspected business irregularities, fraud
and corruption. During the year, no incident of corruption
was reported within the Group.

There was no non-compliance in relation to corruption
or money laundering-related laws and regulations during
the year.

Community

Community Investment

In order to become a more responsible business
and create a better living environment for the local
community, the Group is committed to continuously
providing sponsorships and donations to various
charitable organisations in the coming years.
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and
is also engaged in treasury functions. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sales and marketing
of residential telephone and related products, and
the processing and trading of used computer-related
components such as integrated circuit chips, hard-
disk and motherboards from developed countries to
developing countries. During the year of review, the
Group also engaged in providing money lending business;
securities brokerage and underwriting business and the
B2B cross-border e-commerce business.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 64.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2020, the Group had a decrease of
approximately 14.2% of revenue as compared to the
corresponding figure for 2019. Information relating to
the financial performance and fair review of the Group
business is set out in the "“Directors’ Statement section”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis section” of
this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong for, among other
things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A discussion on the Group’s prospects is provided in
the Director’s statement on pages 2 to 3 of the annual
report. Description of principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group is facing is provide in this corporate
governance report on pages 12 to 32 of the annual
report while the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group,
relationships with its key stakeholders and environmental
policies are contained in the corporate governance report
and environmental, social and governance report on
pages 33 to 44 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past financial years is set out on page 176.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 65% of the revenue of
the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 31% of the revenue of the Group while
the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 87% of the purchases of the Group and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 54% of
the purchases of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate
of a Director (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's
largest customer or the largest supplier.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group had no addition of leasehold
improvement, furniture, fixtures and equipment. Details
of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Malcolm Stephen JACOBS-PATON
(resigned with effect from 31 December 2020)

Mr. ZHU Yuqi
Mr. CHOW Hei Yin Terry
(appointed with effect from 31 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. LU Bei Lin
(resigned with effect from 31 December 2020)

Mr. MAN Yuan
Mr. MA Kin Ling
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Chow Hei Yin Terry who was appointed by the
Board on 31 December 2020 shall hold office until the
next general meeting and being eligible, offer himself for
re-election at the annual general meeting. Clauses 87(1)
and 87(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Zhu Yugi and
Mr. Man Yuan will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Director is the period
from the date of last re-election or last appointment
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's Byelaws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short
positions of the Directors, chief executive and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:
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EEEWE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERFETHAEZRGE
INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) = (@)
Long Position L5y
Ordinary shares of HK$0.006 each of the Company K2 G] &2 R ET1E0.006)8 T2 &
AR
No. of
underlying
shares held in
options
granted under  Percentage of
the Share the issued

Option Scheme share capital of
T8Iz the Company

No. of R Em EARAFE

shares held B8z BITRAEAZ

Name of directors EENA FrERMEE BEROEE BotE

ZHU Yugi KFEATEE - 7,607,000 0.83

MAN Yuan w B 5t & - 7,607,000 0.83

MA Kin Ling B & T4 - 7,607,000 0.83
Note: Hiat -

1. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 1. ZREBDETDIBRBARAGNR_-E
the Company’s issued share capital of 912,936,566 as at ZEFFT AT —HAZBEETR
31 December 2020. 7X912,936,566[% 51 & °

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 23R 49



h0

Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 May 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by shareholders at
the annual general meeting, under which the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant share options to eligible
persons including Directors, employees and consultants
to subscribe share in the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share options
to subscribe for 76,070,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.006
each under the Share Option Scheme had been granted
to eligible grantees. During the year ended 31 December
2020, 8,607,000 share options granted to two directors
had been lapsed due to their resignation, 12,046,000
share options granted to employees and consultants had
been expired.

At 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect
of which outstanding share options could be exercisable
under the terms of the Share Option Scheme was
144,538,000 shares, representing approximately 15.8%
the shares of the Company in issue at that date. All
outstanding share options are currently held by directors,
employees and consultants of the Group.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed below, the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.

Name of shareholder
with over 5% shareholding

BERBS% REZRRES/ £

Cloud Dynasty (Macau) Limited (Note 2)
Cloud Dynasty (Macau) Limited ( #/z#2)

Chan Sin Ying (Note2)
RiE& (Hit2)

Eugene Finance International Limited
(Note 3)
Eugene Finance International Limited

(H:23)

Xiao Lili (Note 3)
BRI (Hrd3)

Capacity
L)

Controlled Company's Interest

REMDR

Beneficial Owner

EEBEAA

Controlled Company's Interest

REH DA R

Beneficial Owner

EEBEAA

Nature of Interest

BEME

Corporate Interest
R

Beneficial Interest
EnfEn

Corporate Interest

NGE £

Beneficial Interest
EnfEn
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Percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Company

(Note 1)

Long or Number of AR REELT

short position shares RAZBEDHT

FRARA Rt &E (hrit1)

Long Position 50,000,000 5.48%
e

Long Position 50,000,000 5.48%
e

Long Position 65,000,000 7.12%
e

Long Position 65,000,000 7.12%

e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of
the Company’s issued share capital of 912,936,566.

2. Cloud Dynasty (Macau) Limited (“Cloud Dynasty”) is
directly interested in 50,000,000 shares in the Company.
Cloud Dynasty is wholly owned by Chan Sin Ying. Chan Sin
Ying is therefore deemed to be interested in 50,000,000
shares in the Company.

3. Eugene Finance International Limited (“Eugene Finance"”)
is directly interested in 65,000,000 shares in the Company.
Eugene Finance is wholly owned by Xiao Lili. Xiao Lili is
therefore deemed to be interested in 65,000,000 shares in
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserve available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2020. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, a Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if: (a) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (b) the realisable value of the Company's assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remu-
neration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
which are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

AUDITOR

The accounts for the year were audited by McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the appointment of McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited as the auditors of the Company
for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Zhu Yuqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Suncorp Technologies Limited and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 175,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

KEY AUDIT MATTERS HRETTEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our BREFEFEABRERMOEEH
professional judgement, were of most significance in W BRMRBEAEEETBRE
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of WENRAEENEH - ELEFIH
the current period. These matters were addressed in TEBRMEABREBEEBmRER

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial HEERNETEEN -ZMTE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion HettEzBRREHEREER -EF5H

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on AR BB EFEA:
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade 1. BYWESERFEREEER(IA

receivables. HEEEE| ) BiE-
2. Allowance for ECL of loan receivables. 2. BWERZEREEBERE-
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BEETEE BN BETNMEERREETSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables

BWE G RA BRI EERERE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2 MR A M IRERM FE6(c) F120 -

The Group had trade receivables of approximately Our procedures in relation to management’s
HK$28,189,000 (2019: approximately allowance for ECL assessment of the trade
HK$32,669,000), net of allowance for ECL receivables as at 31 December 2020 included:

of approximately HK$1,452,000 (2019: HZMEBEEREHR _T_TF+_-_A=+—H
approximately HK$1,043,000). ZEWE GEFEHEEERRETEHZEFE
ESEHEAREWE 5RA28,189,000/87T (= #E:

T — N F 432,669,000 L) K TEHE

BE BB E L1452 0008 T (—E— NE:4 ° Understanding and evaluating the key
1043.00085T) ¢ controls that the Group has implemented

to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

o THWKFE EXRECEEHEABEERZESIREE-
NERREEAEERR Iz E =
H iR B A

e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2020 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;

s HMBREN_Z_ZF+_HA=T—HE#H
MG REANNEWE 5 RN RERIBRNF
i B IRTT A B WU

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)



Independent Auditqr’s Report
¥ 3L 1% S

Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Allowance for ECL of trade receivables (continued)

BKEZRAFBREEBRZEE (&)

Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of provision for allowance
for ECL based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the
trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management also
considered forward-looking information that
may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the
allowance for ECL.
ERERBIRAZFNGEEMRN BRE SR
RO BTEECE BREAENRR BH
RREAERERERSELEBBE SO
BRHMWEZFENERWE ZRRA AT E M
MEtiRTA i EEBEEEN T 2 L ETTE ST
H-BERENERBARTETRFEERERS
EREENHATE M E R A TEREE BB &
e

We focus on this area due to the allowance for
ECL of trade receivables under the ECL model
involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.
BMEITLEE D BHREREEBEEXTH
BREZSERBEHEEEEREIRFERAEX
IR E e R A At e

Inquiring of management for the status
of each of the material trade receivables
past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding
on-going business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records
of and other correspondence with the
customers;
RBEEBARFEBAEBHEKE S RFAMN
MRAEHZFEBREEETEREN®ERE (F
WRIEE Hictk T REREPNISERKEE
REZFPNBAEIGEEERIEARERTP
B E AL RAE ) A B IR

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the ECL; and

AETEREEEEREEEART AE MR
B R B2 BUIR B A DA BT HEREE N e Bk
TEAETRAGEERMAZRR B
BERAEMEER: &

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.
EEMAER ERBEERRNGS MR
K FTVEIRER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

Key audit matter

BARETER

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables

BUREF R EEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Refer to notes 6(c) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

SRR B M B |R M E6(0) K21 -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's loan
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$168,595,000 (2019: approximately
HK$237,390,000), net of allowance for ECL
of approximately HK$100,934,000 (2019:
approximately HK$13,182,000).
RZZE_TEF+_A=1T—H XEENEK
E X4 7/168,595,0008 L (ZT—NF: 4
237,390,000/ 7T) - I A EEBEEBL
100,934,000/ 7T ( —F — JL4F : £913,182,000
BIT) e

The allowance for ECL of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at
the end of the reporting period of ECL under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments ECL models.
AAREWRERERGEEBEREREEEERE
TRV HREENFFR - eMIAEHREES
BFEEN RNBREPREBHREEERz&E
&t e

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment on provision for allowance for ECL
of loan receivables as at 31 December 2020
included:

RZEBEZZF+_A=+—H BMAEHEERE
AT RERERNFEREEFRBEHEETIHD
RFEE:

e Evaluating the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over credit control, debt collection
and estimate of ECL;

e MEGEEERE BEHKLOLEFEBEER
182 RS AR BBV R AT - B b BB VR

e Assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models by examining the
model input used by management to form
such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking
information including the economic variables
and assumptions used in each of the
economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when
recognising loss allowances;

e Mt EEEEHEEERRASEUNT
ARBEERERESEBABMRAZE
A ABE (BRASBEENBURNERE
M) FAEELEEXEERA AKEMNRR
LRAEULER (BEEEEBEESTMER
MEEBESEERNBRRALHEEXRE)REE
AEELEEER UARFEEREENRERE
BREEREAFERR



Independent Auditqr’s Report
¥ 3L 1% S

Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNNEERRETSE

Allowance for ECL of loan receivables (continued)

BUREHZEBREEERZE (&)

The measurement of ECL requires the
application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions
used in the ECL models (for exposures
assessed individually or collectively), such as
the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.
BHEEBENTEARAERABRESH
BN EBREENGEEERRERLHRER
ARFEBREEERER R EANRR (RESE
S HRAFEORRTS) - PINEERKR SR
ENARERBREERRE-

We focus on this area due to the significant
amount of the loan receivables (with carrying
amount representing 56% of the Group's
total assets) and the significant estimates and
judgement involved in determining the ECL
assessment on the loan receivables.
BMEILTE D BERERER (REE
A BEEEEERLENSS% ) NERSENAR
ErRWERNEREEBEN G REXM
=T Ko Hlf -

Reviewed settlements after the financial year
end relating to the loan receivables as at
31 December 2020; and
RUBFERGCENR T _ZTF+_H
=+t —HBRKRERBBZEERBL: &

We also assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to the Group's credit risk exposure.
EENAER EXREFEERRNESMB
P FTEREE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
("Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether
the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

18 3L 1% BN B0 3R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB MR EH

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Wai Kuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P05966

3/F., Winbase Centre,

208 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

N
%Fn‘ﬁ

mEEMEENESR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

Revenue
Costs of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Distribution and selling expenses
Operating expenses
Provision for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on trade,
other and loan receivables, net

Unrealised gain/(loss) on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

Realised loss on financial
assets at FVTPL

Loss from operation
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year
attributable to the owners
of the Company

Other comprehensive
income
ltem that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on

translating foreign operations

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year
attributable to the owners
of the Company

Loss per share (HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted

Note
Mt it

Wy 8
&R A

EH
H A Y a8 9
DR HERX
REFX
FEUE 5 FR5R - H i B
RIA N EWE R 2 B
EEBE ([AHFEE
iR BEEFER
BNV EABRR
(MR FEFABRE])
ZEREELZ
BRWa (BE)
B FER AR
CERMEEZCDER
18

K EE
B 7 B AR 11

BRBATE IR
PrisiisEe, (X)) 12

RABER AR

FEER

13

Hib 2 H W=
AJREREKEF 7 IEE

B HE -
BEGINKBZIER

|

RRABERABEEREE
BEREEZEWREARE

BRER (W) 17
—HK

—#F

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
173,692 202,546
(148,104) (177,175)
25,588 25,371
856 4
(443) (1,823)
(18,275) (43,113)
(88,031) (7,355)
10,574 (14,821)
(431) (527)
(70,162) (42,264)
(188) (262)
(70,350) (42,526)
243 (240)
(70,107) (42,766)
2 (203)
(70,105) (42,969)
(Restated)

(&5&:75)

(8.52) (5.62)
N/A RERH NATEA




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deposits
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

Loan receivables
Financial assets at FVTPL

Tax recoverable

Cash and bank balances
- Segregated accounts
— House accounts

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Bank loan
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
ER B L
i
ELERABE

RBEE
B E SRR
Ty Ed
R E
RATEHARRZ
SHEE
Al E R
R BB
"B
~BAEF

B R
BHESERR
ey BEY
REAE
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FIE Y

REEFRBEMR

ERBEE

AREHERAEEREAR
%

B
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mER

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 175
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf

by:
ZHU Yuqi
KFH

Director

ma BRI ER

At 31 December 2020 W=—Z=—ZF+=-A=+—8H

2020 2019

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

k3 FHET FHEIT

18 5 79

19 205 205

27 979 979

1,189 1,263

20 40,919 47,662

21 168,595 237,390

22 61,050 39,880

165 -

23 5,620 8,532

23 21,615 30,174

297,964 363,638

24 39,862 53,047

25 675 2,251

26 3,584 181

- 15

44,121 55,494

253,843 308,144

255,032 309,407

25 - 482

255,032 308,925

28 5,477 4,564

249,555 304,361

255,032 308,925

FOAEVISE B BRRCN

/M%g%i EFHE)- WA FAESEAR
= =E

CHOW Hei Yin Terry
BAEE

Q/'rector
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

njs A*E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

At 1 January 2019
Adjustments on initial application of
HKFRS 16

Restated balance at 1 January 2019

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments (note 33(a))

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year

Placing of shares (note 28(i))

Share options lapsed

Recognition of equity-settled share based
payments (note 33(a))

At 31 December 2020

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ¥R BER AT

\Z2-NE-A-H
"E BRMBRSEN
63 HE
RZF-NE-A-HZ
AEYEH
rERERREARELE

ERURASERDBER 2K

F-B-H
BRREEUELE

RARE (#328()

BRELK

ERARREE
(H#33()

ERBBER 5

AZZCTEFCASH-R

“EEtCASt-BLEE

Other
capital Share
Share Share reserve Contributed Translation options Accumulated
Capital premium Hih surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RA RBEE ERERE BARH BERR BRERE 2ithE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT TAL TET TAL T TEL AL
(note 31(b)i)  (note 31(b)i)  (note 31(b)ii)  (note 31(b)iv)) (note 31(b)V))
(W3nbh))  (WE3eyy)  (WE3)  (FEb)  (KE3)
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 61 6,804 (185,824) 339,719
_ _ - - - - (4,856) (4,856)
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 61 6,864 (190,680) 334,863
- - - - (203) - (42,766) (42,969)
- - - - - 17,031 - 17,031
4,564 57,856 14,945 441,253 (142) 23,895 (233,446) 308,925
- - - 2 - (70,107) (70,105)
913 12,179 - - - - - 13,692
h - - - - (7.419) 7419 -
- - - - - 2,50 - 2,50
5471 70,635 14,945 441,253 (140) 18,996 (296,134) 255,032




Operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial

assets at FVTPL

Realised loss on financial
assets at FVTPL

Finance costs

Interest income

Share-based payment expense

COVID-19 related rent
concessions received

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for ECL on
trade receivables

Provision for ECL on loan
receivables

(Reversal of)/provision for
ECL on other receivables

Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes
Decrease in trade and other

receivables
Increase in loan receivables
Decrease in bank balances
- Segregated accounts
Decrease in bill receivables
discounted with full resource
(Increase)/decrease in financial
assets at FVTPL

Decrease in trade and
other payables

Cash used in operations
Income tax refunded/(paid)
Interest element of lease paid
Interest paid

Net cash used in operating
activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—

RERK
BR B AT 518
lg@;ﬂ%&

ERN NS

BAFEFAER 2
j’: ﬁﬂﬁFZﬂi
iy /ﬁ%
ﬁ@$@ﬁA% 57
CREECEREE
ﬂﬁﬁ$
B WA
D BER
3R
2 CovID-191RE T &
i
HEWE HE R
B2 EE
EIE FERR B
EEBERE
BRERZBHEE
EiERE
HibEUWKIETEHEE
BiE (Bm) B

AT EEERZ BRI
N“mﬂ/(%%)
FEN E 5 BR 3 &%

Hfth [ o 5k TR A
JE W & FRIE AN
RITHEBRR D

—BUERP
MEZEHEREL

G
BATEFAERZ

%ﬂﬁ%(iM)/
ENE SRR R

H A & A ZOE R

WM@%Zﬁi
RE/ (B % m
Eﬁf_wzfﬂ
SENEESS

REXBIRAZREFE

R ZITE

HERERER

E-BE+-ASt-ALEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
H et FERT FET
(70,350) (42,526)

25 71

(10,574) 14,821

431 527

188 262

- (2)

33(a) 2,520 17,031
(67) -

49 -

409 377

87,752 6,541

(130) 437

10,253 (2,461)

6,464 6,392

(18,957) (38,623)

2,912 43,568

= 973

(11,027) 41

(13,185) (40,896)

(23,540) (31,006)

63 (1,102)

(98) (229)

(90) (33)

(23,665) (32,370)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEREERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

Note
#tet
Investing activity REXK
Interest received B KA 8
Financing activities MEEK
Decrease in advance drawn on BIME2EERE L
bill receivables discounted with ERBE R R B
full recourse ZBFOR D
Proceeds from placing of new shares B¢ & ¥70% 3 F7 15 78
New bank loan raised EEMBTERN
Repayment of bank loan EEBFITER
Principal elements of lease BENEENKAEEH S
payment paid
Net cash generated from/ MEXKELE/(BR)2
(used in) financing activities HE&FE
Net decrease in cash and RekReFEEBRD
cash equivalents FER
Effects of foreign exchange NEERZH T E
rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZzHekES
1 January FEER
Cash and cash equivalents at R+T=-—B=+t—-HzH&
31 December kE€ZEER
Analysis of cash and cash ReRAESSHEEBE M
equivalents
Cash and bank balances BeRBITHES
- House accounts -BEERF 23

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
- 2

— (973)
13,692 -
3,800 -
(397) (698)
(1,991) (2,123)
15,104 (3,794)
(8,561) (36,162)

2 (203)
30,174 66,539
21,615 30,174
21,615 30,174




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

GENERAL

SunCorp Technologies Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and 35/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, respectively. The Company's
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS");
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

1.

—REHR
FHRAEAERAR([AA7])
BERBEREQAREALBARE
AKX RBER AT
ARalzadMREEREESE
3 40 Bh b 4k 5 Bl & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda & &
BET B EEISR P IRE SIS
B-ARARNMRBEBBERS
FrER AR ([BRRF])ERE
o

ARARRERERAB - HEXR
MEBARCEBEXHHENEAR
BA IS ¥RR M E32

B EE
hERAEVUBREREBERS
g Ag ([(EREEA
e EMRNMBERET YK
WELA([BEEAHBREE
Bl ) RE - BB & A
PRESEVHERELER([FSB
MEHREEA|) BB E
Al ([EBEsEA]) ke
W EREMBERER NE TR
Frass EmRBIEE BB
XRBAERNAGDE (622F)
MEEE R  AEERMNEKX
CHEBEHEERT X

FEEEMAGERME TH
I NMEER] B A HRE LR
ZEEANEAREEE AN ST
AR B R RS A B2 PR -
R RSP RN ]
ERAZBERMEEANLEEFRE
MHBRRARBKRENEBES
AP ERTBREFE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
ra

B 75 SR SR B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to
Reference to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Definition of a Business

HKFRS 3

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application
of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

3. RAHFIREMBITRM
%5 & 2% A
(a) AR RGBT EE

B 75 3R 5 2 A

RERAVBRER A&
BEBEXRERAR-_Z=F
F—A—Hstz®MHBZ
FEHERNERES
M BmEEERFHER
MEZR 2R (BETA) B
KT EBGTMAER
Mz BBV ERELER (B
HESE

BB G £
FIHRER
ERRTIESS
(BFIK)

BBMBRSE
B35
(BFIK)

BEMBRE  MEREEHE
ERIFE 9% -

Beest£a

FI9HLER

HEREER

F75, (BRI X)

BAZESR

FHTER

It AN N E B IR F KA
BBMBHRELERIF 165
(BRIAR) - FEHEERAE
(COVID-19) HHFAT &R % °

BRI X EEIN RAF
ERRAELMB RS 2E
R AR RIEERZ R
(BETR)RBEMBRS
ZR (BRI A) XL EHKE
BRAFERBEFELZ
BBERRARKBRE R H%F
HEMBHRARME ZHE
EXBAFE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. RAHAIREEITERDY
| EER (&)
(a) BRI REETER

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient
that allows a lessee to by-pass the need to
evaluate whether certain qualifying rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic ("COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions”) are lease modifications and,
instead, account for those rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments and applies the practical expedient
to all qualifying COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions granted to the Group during the
year. Consequently, rent concessions received
have been accounted for as negative variable
lease payments recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments occurred (note 13).
There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2020.

B H R 2 A (80

BB B EERAFE 16
B (BETA) B &
B (COVID-19) 1A B 78
EHE

ZETREH -—BERRE
BRE EHATEAEERE
HHEEATNEREER
(COVID-19) KimfTMmE- 2
ETRENRHEeER([H
9% & & fw (COVID-19) 4
BiEHeR2 ) RERMEE
1Bs] MAE R EIEHE
EgsTz A BHEHESRE
ABR©

AEBDEEBERERFERNZ
Bl WEARAEERSE
NERZFIBEEE®RZH
78R & & f/ (COVID-19) 48
e R % Bt WH 2
MeReE NBEZSEN
RZEHKIBRE LR
CERHYRARAEFAE
MEMNK(MFE13) B
RZEZFEF—H—BZ
FUERT BT E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 16,
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions, the Group
has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2020. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”

BB BEREEREIR (BFTA) [HREER 2R

Amendments to HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment:

proceeds before intended use”
ERGTEAFEI65 (BFTAR) W WE L&RE:
ANVEHETE % Al 2 RS 30E |

Amendments to HKAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract”

BB EREITHR (BFAIA) TBRAN—EKRAKZKA]

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle

TE-N\FE_ZT_TFRMzBBMBREEN ZFEUE

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

3. RAHFIREMBITRM
| EER (&)
(b) B REMR1E I8 R AE W2 Hh

STREETEBYHR

a4 E|J

= P

BREEMERELEAZE 16
(BRI AR) FEREE
7 (COVID-19) #8 B 1 & &
BN ANEEBR_ZT=F
F—A—BszERABZ
B B 4 R AT FE A
TREEMEEAERZ
ME] RIEIET BBV B R
HER-A L EAEBE LW
LEEME REIER BB
MBHREENBIEUTS
18 :

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
KU A&
H2EERZ
ST HBEER

1 January 2022
—_=E_—

—A—H

1 January 2022
—E-—

—HA—H

1 January 2022

—_E-_—
—H—H
1 January 2022
—_E-_—
—H—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. KMFTIREIEFTE B
HKFRSs (continued) HHREZER (&)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not (b) B FEMIE I REMZH
yet effective (continued) R REETTE BB
HHERH (8&)

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RULT B8
HZ2ERKRZ
BHBEN
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities 1 January 2023
as current or non-current”
BRI ERE IR (BFTR) [BENRBIERBHE] —T-=fF
—H—A
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) “Presentation of 1 January 2023
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Team Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”
EERERSR (ZT_ZF) [MBEHRERZ2—ERAH —T=F
BEERERERRXZENERZSE —H—H
The Group is in the process of making an REEFBEFEENEZFES
assessment of what the impact of these KEFETERAFBHR G X
amendments and new standards is expected EREENFTE -BZEH
to be in the period of initial application. So far Bl NEBER B M IS
it has concluded that the adoption of them is Al N KA e sz S 4ra 0t
unlikely to have a significant impact on these BHREREEERATE-

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
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B 75 SR SR B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management

to

exercise its judgement in the process of applying

the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

TESTEE
AZEEBUMBRERIIRE LK
AERRE ER T XEFEE
ABRRERSIN-

RETEBEBY B HREEH
BT ERALSTHES
HfEEr-ERENAERALASE
B e BURABEA EL A E -
NN - IR TR =k =0k
B (R AUEREAMEBE
RNEBE R FTAEE - TIR M
SRR

MAEZEEAUWBRREEM
FESHBEREIWAT -

&
HEMBERERRBEEARF
REMBRAARARENEE
TZRA=+—B LB
HR-MBEAREALEEA
BEGIRNEE - EXAKE
BRESEBEEXBM=ESR
XERFAFHEH LA
ENBEHEEBNEIM
TEZELRE NEZE
BEEEHE - EXNKEH
BE<HBAENEEHER
A (AHEERREKRSE

FENEY)MNREER
B AEBENHZERER
DA

ER AR AEEY
1 P PN
Hio & DB KB ERT
B ERBEABEBR
TEEERRAN R E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)

(a) #EERE (&)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss.

(b) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

B AR EEHEEE S
AEEEREGEA AR K
BAREESELLE A
AT R A AR

SEARAMBR S #EHk
BEBMNATHHE R
BEBRTEHE RIFZX
SERBBEINMBEREE
B RE AR B aR o MY B 2
ANEHRRCFELLE
5 B8 o DARE R B2 K 5% [ P 2R
OB R E R — e

R R A B IS AR R A
RHTEB AR MKRERKA
R R 15 5 1R 51 iR o

(b) SNESIRE

() WEERZS&

AEEETEERNY
BRRABENIER -
BAZERLEENTE
RERRENEE ([
RRER|FIE-HREY
BWMERTIARRF Y
RGBT (18
)25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)
(b) INEEIRE (4])
(i) R&EEEBIHED

(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i) Transactions and balances in each

76

entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

RO T HERE - INE R
HUEAR 5 E BE
RHEABNEEE U
SNEETENEREE R
BEHEEREHRY
PEREITHRE - H% B
B HUR T EE A ) W as Ko
ERENBEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE=-Z-TF+-A=+—-HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ili) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

4. FESFBER (8)

(b) SNEERE (&)

) AR A

AEREBEERNRE
N BN BT e B
WMARMRAERRRIN 27T
B - HERATAHARBR
ERARTINEINE
e

- RBEFBRAKZ
JIMBERBET
BARBY BN K
B 5 B i T R R

— WX TIREIA T
fE =] E (B IF %
FHEXRWIHFER
AR5 E BBITE
REZRTENSRE
mat R EZBR
T B EBER
7 & B E X ]
g): &

- FBEREEmEE®D
X ZRBENAEM
2HERFEERIL R
SN EREBEAR
l:l_l—

AMEAARR RHnE
T% HHINERFIRE —

STHEREEMEL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of
the term of the lease
or 5 years

15%-20%

Leasehold improvement

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)

(d) Leases (d) HE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)

(d) Leases (continued) (d) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if
it were not a lease modification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of

financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group's entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. FESFBER (8)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of

(f)

financial instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

=
ra

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Financial assets (continued)

Debt investments (continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) - recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or fair FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

B 75 SR SR B L

BE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

(0

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. FESFBER (8)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Trade and other payables

(N

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(m) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
wholesale’s specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the wholesaler as this
represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Commission income from securities dealing and
brokerage services is recognised on trade date
basis when the relevant sale or purchase of
securities transactions is executed.

Commission income from placing and underwriting
service is recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying agreement or deal mandate when the
relevant significant act has been completed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

4. FESFBER (8)

(m) Wzt K H AU A ()

HEEBMIWENEMZ
EHREERERR HMEam
NEZHEB/EEZAD
H (32 B RERR o A 52
P& B E ] 2 EEBIR
EN#HTAREREE X
EEEEEMZIEREE
KEmmeENIBRZEL -
AEERE MmN ELE
RN R REA S
WEHK B 2 F R 5 B
HESERT EAGRMA
RS R A RS 3K o

EER P NERRE OB
TWARETHBEESFR
SEERRESAHRESE
R o

Ao & & B 3H IR 75 0 8 & W
ATREBEETH TN
HEZREBHEIRXFHE
2 AR IR ©

MBBMAREFBERE
B A RO TERR © AR 3 X
AEHE B YW E L IREER
BEzeBMEEMNS BERK
HAEERERFE -5 H
REEREZEZREEM
FoBEEZEHRA (BN
BRERBEB I RmAE)E
HERF -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(1)

(1)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or, if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. The fair
value is measured at the date the Group receives
the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Government grants (continued)

(r)

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit
("CQU").
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates
that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment
is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount
caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables
and loan receivables. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)

(t) EMEERE (&)

(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and loan receivables. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group's
debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 90 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has
an internal rating of “performing”. Performing
means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there are no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)

(t) EMEERE (&)

(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than one year past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FTESBER (#)

(continued)

(t) EMEERE (&)

(t) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

4. FESFBER (8)

(t) EMEERE (&)

REEEER 7 ER
e (%)

TREENHEHEEEE
BREANENASEERN
rERHNBRERERLRE
B AR WA T A R &R
E(HREERMNER)
AL R

fieh 7% 5= B 70 b {8 R 5 H A
NHEER2HEHEER
BNETHRTE—He®T
AW EREE BERARE
FHEETBENAE2EA
HEEBENENY A&
R E B L1218 A 18
HEEERNBR < ET
EBHERE HEERBLX
ZEERINe

AEBEREEZTHERBMEAE
BT A AR E W s
B WEBEERERENE
fEAEHRME(E -

BERIAEE

EAKERBEELENEN
AERERBEEAMER
T-METEERAIREEH
i i A R
AEESENBRT  AY
ZERRNEBE I EE 2
BERARE - HEEERA
BEEX ABEZERTY
BEMARBERZELLZ
Sz BB



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(v)

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period
are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the
following judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(t), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Income tax

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.
Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. During the year,
approximately HK$243,000 (2019: HK$240,000)
of income tax was credited (2019: charged) to
profit or loss based on the estimated profit from
the Group's operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEHETRFEEMS (8
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty TR ERZ 2 EEZRR
(continued) (&)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables and loan b) EKNEZEAREKE
receivables 8

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables and loan receivables based on
the credit risk of trade receivables and loan
receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered
by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk a prolonged pandemic
could lead to increased credit default rates.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and loan receivables
were approximately HK$28,189,000 (2019:
HK$32,669,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$1,452,000 (2019:
HK$1,043,000)) and HK$168,595,000 (2019:
HK$237,390,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$100,934,000 (2019:
HK$13,182,000)).

AEBEEEENRKE
SEALERERNEER
R fEst B E SRR K
EUREREHREEEED
HEBESE ERNEHRE
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BMOBEREBEAOENAE
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FBR B 5 #91,452,00078 7T )
(ZZ— N5 :1,043,000
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=
ra

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B
’

T 75 2R 2= Bt =

BE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’'s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is
denominated in HK$. The Group has certain
exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in United States dollars (“US$"),
Australian dollars (“AUD"), Euro (“EUR") and
Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the US$ is pegged against HK$ and the
risk of movements in exchange rates between
US$ and HK$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is performed on the
movements in exchange rates between US$ and
HK$.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed
on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in AUD, EUR and RMB as the
directors of the Company are of opinion that
they are not material to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(b) Price risk (b) B+ & B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities
classified as financial assets at FVTPL (note 22).
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2019: 10%)
higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 and accumulated losses would have
decreased/increased by approximately
HK$6,105,000 (2019: HK$3,988,000).

AEBTEEBERN DA
BRERAVFEFABDZE
BMEE (Mi22) 2 RAFE
2 A Thm AR E S
R-BEEEBEAEBEFTED
R & B B |l R ey B A
EIEA ER - AN EE K
RERRAREEZES S EH
RFTET R B AR TE 5

ATEEED M IERR
¥ H R B Y BR B AR
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HutwmBEES8ERFIT &
—+—BLFEZEBEEK
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= AH
A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

F 795 R 2 B =

S-EE+-ASt+-HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

()

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and loan receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions. The Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables arising
from the business of dealing in securities are due
within 2 trading days (2019: 2 trading days) after
the trade date and secured by client’s securities.
Trade receivables arising from other business are
due within 30 to 90 days (2019: 30 to 90 days)
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers other
than the cash clients of securities brokerage
business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. IEMERE (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

The following tables provide information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables, as at 31 December 2020 and
2019:

JEKE ZRR (E)

AEBEZERRNZHEH
EEBRBRZEBITERK
BHERRZEBRER BT
ERREREETHE A
RAKEBEZEEEE
KRBRI KRR TEEP D
BREANAEBEERESN £
REBHREZBEBRBERET
SE-—ITRAEETRE
PEWRZEE—FED -

TREINEER_ZEZZE
FhR—ZT—-—NhE+=A
S+ —BASEEERER
ESERZEERRKTRE

HEEBECER:
2020
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAET FET
0 - 30 days 0£30H 1.8 10,179 (180)
31 - 60 days 31260H 2.7 1,707 (46)
61 — 90 days 61£290H 3.2 10,324 (330)
Over 90 days 90H A E 12.1 7,431 (896)
Total 1@z 29,641 (1,452)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra MR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

0 — 30 days 0&30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 908 K +
Total #mEt

6. KEMREE (&)

(c) FERR (&)

JEKE ZRR (E)

2019

Gross
Expected loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHAEIE X RERE 518 1%
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FA&TT FET
0.6% 12,764 (84)
1.5% 5,395 (81)
3.1% 6,761 (211)
7.8% 8,792 (667)
33,712 (1,043)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected

lives of the trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

At 1 January mn—H—H
Impairment losses recognised FARABRZBEEE
for the year

At 31 December RNt+—_A=+—H

Other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are
long overdue with significant amounts, known
insolvencies or non-response to collection
activities, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. The Group recognised
the provision for ECL by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and
the likelihood of recovery and considering the
prevailing economic conditions.

Bt 75 L By B R ()

(c) FERR (&)

JEKE ZRR (E)

FA REESERNER
BEgEHmT:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,043 666
409 377
1,452 1,043

A i fE B
BMEAASBEEKNZE

A CAENEEXTEE
BB WEE 2 Bt E W
IR ' R E R A EE R
A fl o AR BE B R B
AZ EE R B E - B X
KUz AT RE 1 A K & &
BITRBEMNRERBIBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEEAMERE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Other receivables (continued) H M JEW K (&)
Movement in the loss allowance for other FA-EMERRIBNEER
receivables during the year is as follows: BEZEOT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
At 1 January KR—H—H 466 29
Impairment losses (reversed)/ FR(BE) /HERZ
recognised for the year BIEEE (130) 437
At 31 December R+ZA=+—~H 336 466
Loan receivables JEW B 5
In order to minimise the credit risk, the AEEREREERR &~&
management of the Group has delegated a team EBEEEZKR—HAAEB
responsible for determination of credit limits, BEETEERE FEH
credit approval and other monitoring procedures R E A BB AR R - AR
to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the BEER AN IR 1T B LA 51 |l fE
recoverable amount of the loan receivables. In WE Rz KE S -t
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable I REBRESBREHKRE
amount of each individual’s loan receivables B & & Rl /& W & X9 AT IR
at the end of each reporting period to ensure B & & - FEAR AT A Y2 E /Y
that adequate impairment loss is made for THATIE AR REEE -

irrecoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)

(continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)

Loan receivables (continued)

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer
based on the customer’s financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits
are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors of
the Company. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored. Loan receivables are due
within one year (2019: one year) from the date
of drawdown.

In determining the ECL of the Group's loan
receivables, the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based
on general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, value
of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit
risk in certain individual customers. As at
31 December 2020, the largest loan receivables
were approximately HK$52,372,000 (2019:
approximately HK$131,098,000) and was
approximately 31% (2019: 55%) of the Group’s
total loan receivables. The Group seeks to
minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties
which have good credit history.

JEWE K (4)

R HE AR 2 80 1 B R &
Rtz NEEEEER
PMEEMEFPEBEER
Pz iEER R - 85
Ao RNEBERIREBEREP ¥
Bn  BELR L EME
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MEB SN B AR M EETE ° 15
ERBZERABRAXEH
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B—F(ZT—F:—F)
AEIEGE

REEANEERERERDN
BHEEERER EEES
BENER AL EFTEE
BITENBRBEENR (E
MEBREENEE B
ANB I BN R X & B
HI % B B A K FEORIAR R 75
BLEVRSEACE R A
EHERE-

rEERETHEANTES,E
HEERBREFHBR R
—EZFEF+ZAR=T—
H & XREWRERABLD
52,372,000 T (=& — N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BREKRERE (&)
(continued)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB (&)
Loan receivables (continued) JEWEZ (&)
2020
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER BREAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET
Loan receivables A= EN 37.4% 269,529 (100,934)
2019
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
THEE B X FREEE EEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET TET
Loan receivables B E K 5.3% 250,572 (13,182)
Movement in the loss allowance for loan FAR-EKE R EEBE
receivables during the year is as follows: SBEWT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At 1 January n—A—H 13,182 6,641
Impairment losses recognised FABRZBEEE
for the year 87,752 6,541
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 100,934 13,182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE=-Z-TF+-A=+—-HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BEMER (&)
(continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RENE & E B2

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on rates current at the end of
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

REBMNBEARTEBHER
BRINTEHABESRE -

DARE (R H #4152 40 3R © %
ﬁ ﬁ1—J-/E;%4HH&§ﬁHE@/)IL

RBERRAEEEITE
TRBEZRGBENRE
Z@*HEIEEE\//AL§<@T§TZZ
CRoEiES #Zﬂgﬁm

&ZZDHZ/?—@J?U+.: ® E\‘JJ«A

FEHRZBITMNEFE
Zﬂgﬁ X)) BB R KA
SEAREAXNHNSEEHR
HAT

On demand Total
or less than Between Between  undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2 and5 years cash flow
AR
EERKLME 1226 2855 BERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT AT FET

At 31 December 2020 RZBE-EE+-RA=1- El
Trade and other payables ERESERREMERK 39,862 - - 39,862
Lease liabilities *ﬁ%ﬁf Ef 682 - - 682
Bank loan RITER 3,584 - - 3,584
44,128 - - 44,128

At 31 December 2019 = n¢+:ﬂz+—a
Trade and other payables Fﬂ BHRTREMERNRIE 52,369 - = 52,369
Lease liabilities HE Ef 2,351 487 - 2,838
Bank loan RITEX 181 - = 181
54,901 487 - 55,388
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to variable-rate bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group’s loan receivables and bank loans
bear interests of fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risk.

Except as stated above, the Group does not
have other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest-rate
risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will
not have significant impact on the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BREKRERE (&)
(continued)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at f) R+=ZA=+—Hz2Z%
31 December BT B A
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Financial assets: EWMEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBRZ
TREE 61,050 39,880
Financial assets BHEENAGTEZ
at amortised cost ERMEE 236,418 322,590
Financial liabilities: tRBeE:
Financial liabilities HEENAGTE Z
at amortised cost SRBE 43,446 52,550
(9) Fair values (9) 2F¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial A MBI AR 25
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the AEBesmEENESRE
consolidated statement of financial position ERNREERAR_-_TZ
approximate their respective fair values as at 31 TFERZZE-NEFETZA
December 2020 and 2019. =+—Bz&%BATEME
% o
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GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations: Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
e Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available.
e Level 3 Fair value measured using significant
valuations:  unobservable inputs

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

AV EHE
TRENAEER RS KRR
REMEEEFENEBRTAR
FE BEAFEREBH R
EHRERABI3R R FEFEIM
REZRFE=ZRERBERET
DB RFEFEMBENER
Ty &2 E DT H E M AT A
WABBENABREMERERN
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cE A EBUE-—LBARE
e FEAFE BEF

BEEXRENGEHA
Hi 2 E RIS AR

ERE-
e FM UEZ_LE\ AR
e BRFE BIRER

BE-—MHREZAE
R ABEBE ALT
EREXRTABRE
AHE- TR B RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEE (80

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at R+T=-—A=+—HZA¥HE
31 December: BB E
Fair value measurements using:
APEFHERAUATER: Total
Description it Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 @t
F—& F-H E=R 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Recurring fair value REMHATHEIE:
measurements:
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRL
- Listed equity securities - ERAES 61,050 - - 61,050

Fair value measurements using:

AFEFEFAUATER: Total
Description ik Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 B
F—H F-R& FZH 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THET
Recurring fair value BEMATHEGE:
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEHABRYL
tRBE
- Listed equity securities — FTRAES 39,880 - - 39,880
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there BHE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—
were no transfers in the fair value hierarchy between AIEFE F—EBHE_ENRQ
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level FEEH2HEBEREE AL
3 (2019: Nil). HY O TEEAZE-EXBEE=

BHL (ZF—NE &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

8. REVENUE 8. W&
Disaggregation of revenue W 2= B8R 4
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with FRNRFEEMmIRBEZE S
customers by major products or service line for the EPEAWEHAMARNT

year is as follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue from contracts with BEEBM B R EERE155
customers within the scope of BHEANZEFEHANE:
HKFRS 15:
Disaggregated by major products or ZEZBE BRI BRBEEE D
service lines A9 BR A
Sales of telephones and related SHE EE MR
components 29,120 78,292
Processing and trading of used RIEREE _FEKAEH
computer-related components ARG 40,974 38,497
Commission from securities BHREBEEMKERGEE
dealing and brokerage services ik n 93 62
Commission from placing and AEERBIERBEES
underwriting service He 913 -
B2B cross-border e-commerce TEHTPEBEREFEE 81,742 65,948
152,842 182,799
Revenue from other sources: H At g A SRR -
Money lending services F (5 AR 75 20,657 19,723
Interest and related income from BEHEEEZFBER
securities EIE RN 193 24
20,850 19,747
Total revenue U Er 173,692 202,546
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

8. REVENUE (continued) 8. Uz ()
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wiz BA AR (4&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of REEBRNUNTETEEMSZ LM
goods and services at a point in time and over time HRE SR RERGEE
in the following major product line and geographical EEm LRI EEH W
regions:
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Timing of revenue recognition: W 25 e SRR
At a point in time RE— g, 152,842 182,799
Geographical market: WEMIF !
People’s Republic of China ("PRC") HZEARLFE ([HEH])

(including Hong Kong) (BREEFS) 91,810 72,144
Australia BN - 1,890
India HE 3,015 12,539
Indonesia E1E e an 21,972 16,992
Korea 72 [ 6,170 18,576
Spain P I - 5,235 13,324
United States of America ("USA")  EFIBR&RE ([XE]) 8,284 8,067
Others Hity 16,356 39,267

152,842 182,799
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hflr A

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Bank interest income RITH E WA - 2
Sundry income MIEWA - 2
Government grant (note) B R Bh (B EE) 856 -
856 4
note: The amount mainly represents the receipts from Biat: ZEFRBEDEEREBRT
Employment Support Scheme provides by the R R ZEFTE] WE Lz
Hong Kong government. The conditions of the FRIE - U BL 2 R 2R

government grant were fulfilled during the year. FRNEH-
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are identified
as the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

The Group has five operating segments as follows:

(i) Sales of telephones and related components;

(ii) Processing and trading of used computer-related
components;

(iii) Money lending services;

(iv) Provision of securities brokerage, placing and
underwriting services; and

(vi) B2B cross-border e-commerce.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each
business requires different technology and marketing
strategies. The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting
policies described in note 4. Segment profits or losses
do not include realised and unrealised gains and
losses on financial assets at FVTPL and unallocated
administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense. Segment assets do not include financial
asset at FVTPL and other unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include tax payables
and other unallocated corporate liabilities.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

10. o2 EHR

ARBAITESTHERE/AE
BN ETEZLERKE LAEE
IR0 B B B R A o

AEBBATRERLEDE:
(i) HEEBRMAEBEMNT:

(i) BENEE - FEMERH
G EREE

(iii) RIE AR

(iv) RERESERL KEREH
TS K

(v) PEHCEBEEEFERK-

AEEMAIZ2H DA R/ERS
(R 2 oa M AR 75 O SR B S A5 B -
ZRSENCIE VTSN T (P
MR WRFEFEE -
0 BPEY S R BRER ELY SEA P
AEBEETBRMAR - 7 76 7
IERTBRERAFEFAR
BZEMEECDERNAKE
Bl kEE KOETHRA
XCBMEKARAEBA D
MEETBERAFEFAR
BZEMEENEMARDER
RAEE-DHABETERENT
BEMARDE AR AE:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 &R E B (@)
Information about operating segment profit FRARE D BRANEE -
or loss, assets and liabilities EEREEZER

Provision of

brokerage,
Used placing and B2B
Telephones  computer- underwriting ~ cross-border
and related related services  e-commerce
components  components Money REEE.  L¥HLE

EELR  -FEH lending RER  EREY Total
ABAE  RBAH HE  ABRE L] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THR THR THR THR ThR ThR

For the year ended HE-3-%F
31 December 2020 +ZB=1-8
LEE
Revenue Wi 29,120 40,974 20,657 1,199 81,742 173,692
Segment (loss)/profit A% (58) /A (1,681) 34 (67,253) (1,394) (12300  (71.214)
Unrealised gain on financial assets  KATFE:f ABRZ
at FVTPL SHEEIAER
Wiz 10,574
Realised loss on financial assets ~ RATFEHABHZ
at FVTPL SHEEZEER
B (431)
Unallocated expenses AAERR (9,091)
Finance costs BENK (188)
Loss before tax BHAEE (70,350)
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF
t=Bzt-8
Segment assets PHEE 769 12,532 170,880 2,083 23,440 229,664
Unallocated assets AAREE 69,489
299,153
Seqment liabilties HHEE (28,489) (4,118) (20) (5718) 7 (38422
Unallocated liabilities AAREE (5,699)
(44,121)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about operating segment profit

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Revenue

Segment (loss)/profit

Unrealised loss on financial assets
at FVTPL

Realised loss on financial assets
at FVTPL

Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Loss before tax
As at 31 December 2019

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

BE-%-nF
+ZA=+-H
LEE

6y

A8 (F8) /&7

ROTEH MRS
SREEZARR
BB

ROTEH MRS
SREEZEER
BB

RAERR

RENE

RHAER

RZB-NE
t-B=1-A

NHEE

APREE

NHRE

APEAE
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10. 7 &R E B (@)
BRAKE DA

A R 1
EEREBEZER (#)

Provision of

brokerage,
Used placing and B28
Telephones  computer- underwriting  cross-border
and related related services  e-commerce
components  components Money — REEE  ARELX
B lending RER  BRET
REAr  REal nE  eEkE wi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEx TiEx TEL TEL
78,292 38,497 19,723 86 65,948
(1,233) 56 (2,138) (4,678) (542)
13,828 8,353 238423 29473 20473
(39,752) (260) (20) (8,624) (61)

Total
a3t
HK$'000
TEn

202,546

(8,535)

(14,821)

(527)
(18,381)
(262)

(42,526)

310,550

54,351

364,901

(48,717)
(7,259)

(55,976)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Telephones
and related
components
EFR
R
HKS'000
Tin

Amounts included in FESTEZAEES
the measure of segment £

profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, 1% BERZENE
plant and equipment -

Unrealised gain on RATEHAREL
financial assets at VIPL ~ SREEZAEBUG -
Realised loss on financial ~ RAFE:F ABEZ

assets at FVTPL SHEE/DRBER -
Provision for ECL on EUERREEE
loan receivables FERE -

Provision for/reversal of)  EUE BARH

ECLon trade receivables  EEEERE/ (BD) (127)
Reversal of ECL on RN ERS

other receivables FEBEEE (130)
Loss on disposal of HENE BER

property, plant and REER

equipment =
Share-based payment MR BERZAREE

expense -

Used
computer-
related
components
Z3EH
BBk
HKS'000
Tin

26

Money
lending

&
HK$'000
TR

81,7152

10. 2 EHE R (&)

ToRE+ZA=T-HLEEE

Hitn &R
BE-8-BF+=-A=+-
HLEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
placing and B28
underwriting ~ cross-horder
services  e-commerce
RUEE.  LEHLE
EER  EHE7  Unallocated Total
BERH B xAR @it
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Tén Tin
25 - - 25
- - (10,574) (10,574)
- - 431 431
- - - 87,152
o4 446 - 409
- - - (130)
49 - - 49
- - 2,520 2,520
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Telephones
and related
components
Eik
AEas
HK$'000
Tién
Amounts incuded in -~ FEFTERAEFH
the measure of seqment £
profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, 1% BERZENE
plant and equipment -
Unrealised loss on BLTENERL
financial assets at FVPL £ REEZ XEBER -
Realised loss on BATENABEL
financial assets at VL~ 4 BEEZCEBEE -
Provision for ECL on ERERESEE
loan receivables ERRE -
Provision for/{reversal of)  EUWEZFARE
ECLon trade receivables  EEHEEE/ (BR) 399

Provision for/reversal of) Kt EUZUAR S
ECLon other receivables  EEEEAE/ (BE) 452
Share-based payment  WRABERZHFER

expense -

Used
computer-
related
components
“FEk
il el
HK$'000
Tén

0. 2 HMER (#0)
Hign ZBEHR (&)
HE_ZT-—NWF+A=+—
HIEFE
Provision of
brokerage,
placing and B2B
underwriting  cross-border
services  e-commerce
Money MR- AXHER
lending BER  BRET  Undllocated Total
BE  BEEE B AR 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR Thn T TiEn
- 71 - - 71
- - - 14,821 14,821
- - - 527 527
6,541 - - - 6,541
- - 66 - 377
- - 1 - 437
- - - 17,031 17,031
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
location of operations and information about its
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed

below:

PRC
(including Hong Kong)
Australia
India
Indonesia
Korea
Spain
USA
Others

B
(BHEEB)

M

BN
EEEma:
7R

Eipi%y

X B

H At

10. 2 EHE R (&)
ih & & R
AEBEZKEMEE 5 KRB
ARPZWHERIZEENEE
DZIEMBEEZER M
T

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

RENMREF 2R FRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAT TET TAET
112,660 91,891 5 79
- 1,890 - -
3,015 12,539 - -
21,972 16,992 - -
6,170 18,576 - -
5,235 13,324 - -
8,284 8,067 - -
16,356 39,267 - -
173,692 202,546 5 79

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments

and deferred tax assets.

et ERBEETBREEMITA
NOEFERA TR B EE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue from major customers

Revenues from customers of corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

BEPR (M)
BPZ (M)

Customer A (note)
Customer B (note)

note. Revenue from B2B cross-border e-commerce
segment.

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZA
Interest on bank loan RITERZF

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

G Cm

10. 2 EHE R (&)

REFEEF 2N HE

A FEEF E L AR B B U e
10% 2 EFWz=mT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

28,044 10,167

53,698 37,030

Wi RECEHCEBREETR

T EE 2 Uk o
1. B &

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FioT

98 229

90 33

188 262




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

12.INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAF{ 18 — & B F1E 5
MEFE (B
BiE) BETRE

BRI IR (K it27)

(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Deferred tax (note 27)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiaries either did not have assessable
profit or had sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset against current year’s assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax
rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations established in Hong Kong will
be lowered to 8.25%, and profits above that amount
will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 as the Group’s PRC subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits during the years.

12.Fr8% (%) BxX

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
(243) 59

- 181
(243) 240

HE_ZT_ZTZFRFT—NLF
+—A=+—BULEFE BFEF
BRI RREEE VR T AR
H REAAEBERBHEB QA
WARELERRD B NHLEEER
MR AR EAR L EEE A
FEERRBAF -

HE-_ZT_ZR_ZF—hnL#F
+ZA=+—HLFE REF
B R AR R E B
& &% 1% 52,000,000 T 2

8.25% MHBBZELEE LR
i M #8172 57 R 16.5% AR Fi o

TEREE T _ZEFR_F
—NWNEFE+_A=+—HLEFE
ERHPBECEASHRER RA
AAERG R B R R (E
FEAVTEELETMNERT G
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of
tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of temporary difference
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
not previously recognised

Effect of different tax rates of
the PRC subsidiaries

(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Tax (credit)/charge for the year

130 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7#efi AR A R

B 7 A &5 18

AR FETE R E16.5%
(ZE—NF:16.5%)
FE IR

RS - T RE300R
IR BB E

ERE ETEFTR
WA RS2

KHER 2 TIBE B
BT E

FERZEREREY
RIS &

B A RER
ZHEBBZHERE

AR B B B R &) AN [R B R
2RE

BEFE (BERE)
BETR

AEEHRIE (ER)
X

12.Fr8% (%) /BxX
(%)
PIERAXBEBNEHN X
FABRTL AT B 1B 2 k18 2 B Bk
LI

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
(70,350) (42,526)
(11,608) (7,017)
619 5,938
(1.816) (M
14,505 1,532
(23) (165)
(1,677) (43)
- (63)

(243) 59
(243) 240




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE=-Z-TF+-A=+—-HLFE

13.LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13.:FEBE

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/ AEBAFEBEIIRINGR,

(crediting) the following: (FTA)R T B IBEEES:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Directors’ emoluments EFMe 2,253 2,009
Other staff costs Ef 8 TRA 7,040 6,791

Total directors’ emoluments EEMeRHEMET

and other staff costs XA 458 (BEE)

(note) 9,293 8,800
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET M & 600 600
Cost of goods sold and services HE S m & RE A

recognised as an expense BRAET 148,104 177,175
Depreciation of property, plant ME- -BERKEBEZITE

and equipment 25 71
Equity-settled share-based payments AR AN 45 & A% (9 & B

(note) Z AR (M) 2,520 17,031
Provision for ECL on 25 REBRR 2 TEH

trade receivables EEBEERE 409 377
(Reversal of)/provision for ECL HtnEWKIBE 2 HHEE

on other receivables BiE (&E) S BE (130) 437
Provision for ECL on loan receivables fEUt & 5~ T8 HA{= E /&

B 87,752 6,541
Expenses related to short term lease %5 Hi7H & 48 B4 59 5% 291 -
COVID-19 related rent concessions 2 W COVID-19/8 &

received R (67) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WMEREEZ

plant and equipment B8 49 -
Net foreign exchange losses MEH EBEHER 44 235
note: it -

Equity-settled share-based payments of approximately R AEER D ABER 2K

HK$1,044,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$1,476,000 (2019: 1,044,0008 T (=T — N F: jHi)

HK$21,000) were included in directors’ emoluments and 1,476,000 L (= — L :

other staff costs respectively. 21,0008 ) DRIt AZEE M & &
HMhE T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense EEREAMX
(including directors’ (BIEESHE) :

emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ & - fE4T & 2 8L

Equity-settled share-based AR AR EE RGN B
payments (note 13) Bt 2 AT
(H1iE13)
Retirement benefit scheme IRRAE AT B 3k
contributions (note) (Htat)
note:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries subject to
a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee
and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

14. BER/AAX
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
6,566 8,554
2,520 21
207 225
9,293 8,800

Hiat -

AEERBEFEGRHERTRESFE
GO RMBEREARERREERES
g HlE AR B ([REEF
B AEBEHRESE 2 HX
IREFEZ5%AE (BUETE
Az&e B THBE,500%T)
MAAKEFARRESTEZEE
WK —REBEEME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continued)
Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included one (2019: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 15. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2019: four) individuals are set out below:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries and allowances EXRE ¢ KR 3,199 2,342
Equity-settled share-based payments AR A& &R 5 A
(note 13) BE@ 2wk (HaE13) - 21
Retirement benefit scheme RRR I E S 3K
contributions 72 65
3,271 2,428
2020 2019
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEA" BB A
Their emoluments were within BEZMEBRIATEHE :
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & L&
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -

During years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

14 EER®FMAX (@)
TEERSHFMAL

AEBRFANTE L RS
ALTEBHE-—FREE (TN
Fr—F) EHEMERHES
2O A-HTEZ(ZF
—NEF R ZFHMESIANT

BE_T_ZTFRZFT—-NLF
+_A=t+—BLFE A&H
YTERAFNAZEEHFALX
NME  ERE AR AR
SEEMNRE KEABMTR

f&-
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=
o)

(a) Directors’ emoluments
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Executive directors
Mr. Malcolm Stephen
Jacobs-Paton (note )
Mr. Chow Hei Yin
Terry (note ii)
Mr. Zhu Yugi

Independent
non-executive
directors

Ms. Lu Bei Lin (note j)

Mr. Man Yuan

Mr. Ma Kin Ling

HITEE

Malcolm Stephen
Jacobs-Paton 5t & (#/5#)

FRB LA (W)

BUHHITEE

BEEMLL(Hiti)
mEKE
SRERE

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 75 $R = M &F

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

15. EE /AR ER
(a) ESM<E

BE-ZF-FF+=H
=t-BLEE
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based
benefits scheme payment Total
Fees &R BARER URHBAE  emoluments
He Hth @R GRS EfZAR ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TEL TAT TER
- 580 - - 580
- 180 9 261 450
140 - - 261 401
120 - - 261 381
180 - - 261 a1
440 760 9 1,044 2,253




For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

15. 55/ ER (&)

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a) ESEM <= (4)

BE-ZT A4 T = A
=t+—HILFE

Contributions

Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits  Share-based
benefits scheme payment Total
Fees ek BERER AR AE  emoluments
ne AR SEIfE ERAR aie
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TET THEL TAER TET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Malcolm Stephen  Malcolm Stephen
Jacobs-Paton Jacobs-Paton % 4 - 1,380 - - 1,380
Mr. Zhu Yugi RFEHRAE - 180 9 - 189
Independent BUFHTEE
non-executive
directors
Ms. Lu Bei Lin BREML T 140 - - - 140
Mr. Man Yuan WELE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ma Kin Ling SRERE 180 - - - 180
440 1,560 9 - 2,009
Note: it -

(i)  Resigned on 31 December 2020

(i)  Appointed on 31 December 2020

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. No
emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the chief executive of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

) R—ZT-FTF+=A
S+—BBE

)y R—ZE=-FTF+ = A
=t+t—HEZE

HE_Z-_FTFER-ZT—H
FT+ZHA=1T—HLFE"
THREEZSIZTHEAER
B ZE =X R B A EE 1 {A) % B
B 22 B o 2N & [ N 4 () (F A
BEERARAEZESITHRA
EXNME EREMAK
NN E TS k5
ERBEEREE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 37, no other significant
transaction, arrangement and contract in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2020, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2019: Nil).

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

15. 55/ ER (&)

(b) EERR G ZHHEHN
ZERER
PR RE37AT R BE & S AR
FRYMNAFEIMER
AR A HEAATH B QA
BER I EAEEX
BEBMARRESZERE
EZBEEALIRETER
IEHEREEEAEAZE

KRR RHRELN -
16. R 2

BHE_T_ZTF+HA=1—
AEFEYERNSEZIRN
B B R B A SR A SR IR
BREREEARE(ZE— N
Fom|E)o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

17.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

Loss BB

Loss for the year attributable to ARETESRER
owners of the Company for EEZARBES A
the purpose of basic loss per share &1l & A 518

Number of shares I3 B B

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purpose of &1 2 & @A
basic loss per share IniE B8

For the purpose of calculation of basic loss per
share for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the share consolidation of the Company being
effective on 26 March 2020 was deemed to be
effective throughout the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. Accordingly, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2019 were
adjusted to reflect the share consolidation.

No diluted loss per share is presented for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, as the
outstanding share options did not have any dilutive
effect and was not included in the calculation of
diluted loss per share.

AR EEREAR

17.8RE#E

ARRHEBEANBEERELRAR
BEE R RBEATEURE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(70,107) (42,766)
2020 2019
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
(Restated)

(BEF)

822,727 760,787

MAEBE_T_ZEFR_F
—NF+ZA=+—HLFE
ZEREREREME AR A
RZEZEF=ZA=-+ B4
MZBMEHEERNEE —
Z_EER-_F-NF+=A
=t—BLEFERER-AL -
RARRBE_ZT—-—LE+=
A=Z+—BLFEZE#HTE
B MMETFHHE AR AR
R A 0 & BF ©

B AR i 2R 7T {50 8 A4 30 % AF o]
BEFHEIESREEE S
R AEHAEEAR HEE=
TTFER-F-NAFTZA
ST ALEFREZEREEE
BIKZ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= AH
A

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 1 January 2019,
31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Disposal

At 31 December 2020
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Charge for the year
Disposal
At 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

19. DEPOSITS

Deposits with the Stock Exchange

— Compensation fund
— Fidelity fund
— Stamp duty deposit

Contribution of guarantee fund paid B4 &
to Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited ("HKSCC")

Admission fee paid to HKSCC

F 795 R 2 B =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

S-EE+-ASt+-HLEE

18. W% -MERRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement equipment
HEYE . Total
£ EERHRE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAETL TAET TET
BA
R-E—NE—A—H"
—E-AE+ZA=1—H
M_E-ZF—F—H 1,503 832 2,335
HE (1,503) (389) (1,892)
R-E-EF+-A=+—H - 443 443
RiiNE
R-ZE—N&E—F—H 1,401 784 2,185
AEESTH 27 44 71
RZE—NF
+ZA=+—-8k
—E2-2F—-A—H 1,428 828 2,256
AEESTH 25 - 25
& (1,453) (390) (1,843)
-
tZA=1+-~ - 438 438
REE
R-ZZE-ZE
+=-RA=+—H - 5 5
RZE—NF
tZA=+-H 75 4 79
19. % &€
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
BT ®
—HEES 50 50
—-BRES® 50 50
— RS 5 5
BHRRLEE
BRAR([BEBEHE])
BERESHEK 50 50
ENEBSGLEELSHE 50 50
205 205

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arising from
the ordinary course of
business of dealing in
securities transactions:

— Cash clients
Less: Allowance for ECL

Trade receivables from other
ordinary course of business,
other than business of dealing
in securities transactions

Less: Allowance for ECL

Deposits in brokerage firms

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Less: Allowance for ECL

Total trade and other receivables

20 ERESIRFI R HEMEY

IE
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K1t FH&T FET
BERGEEERZ
HE¥KAREESE
REWE SR :
-BeERP (a) 2,353 228
B TEHEEEER
B (64) -
2,289 228
BB EEKBE
EENEWRES
BER(BHERS
B E X5 (b) 27,288 33,484
B TEHEEEEE
B (1,388) (1,043)
25,900 32,441
RELRNR 2% E 4,432 9,513
e FERRER
H b e W3R8 (c) 8,634 5,946
B TRHE EEERE (336) (466)
12,730 14,993
JEWE ZERA R EAM
JE W FRIB %R 40,919 47,662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
ra

B 75 SR SR B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a) Trade receivables arising from the

business of dealing in securities

The Group seeks to maintain tight control
over its outstanding trade receivables and has
procedures and policies to assess its clients’
credit quality and defines credit limits for each
client. All client acceptances and credit limit are
approved by designated approvers according to
the clients’ credit worthiness.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables
from clients and clearing house arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are 2 trading days (2019: 2
trading days) after the trade date.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables arising
from the ordinary course of business of dealing
in securities transactions, based on trading date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

0%30H
90H M E

0-30 days
Over 90 days

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

20 ERESIRFI R HEMEY
IE (#)

(a) RHEEBEXBELEZE

W& 5 BR K

REENKEREHER
Yo [el 2 e W8 5 IR K W R
ERFEBRFHEEERP
MEEERURATER
FHREERBE -EMAEFH
—EEREEREGH
EEBRHLABREBEEFH
EEEL-

RESFBERBZBER
BHREFTEENREEFR
NREEMESERAOIER
RERRXHEHRME
RHA(ZE-NF WE
Z5H) -

EHRRHGEEXEHK AT
EBBRELACEKE S
R (MERBEER)RER
7 B H 25| 2 BREk 5 1 a0
T

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
79 -
2,210 228
2,289 228




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
] =
e HEHREMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE
20 ERESRRRHMEWR
I (#)

(a) Trade receivables arising from the () BHEEXKELEZE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

business of dealing in securities
(continued)

Trade receivables due from cash clients are
secured by clients’ securities, which are publicly
traded equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
fair values of the securities as at 31 December
2020 were approximately HK$19,925,000 (2019:
HK$7,298,500). As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, all balances were secured by sufficient
collateral on an individual basis.

In addition, the Group has a policy for
determining the allowance for impairment of
trade receivables without sufficient collateral
based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement including the
creditworthiness, collateral and the past
collection history of each client.

In determining the recoverability of the trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from
the date the credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date and the fair values of the
collateral held.

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
receivables arising from the business of dealing
in securities are denominated in HKS$.

W E 5 IR ()

EURBReEFPFONEKRE S
EFXUEFPHNES (BRE
BLAREBEBZ LTRARE
FIEBER - BFHER T =
EFE+_A=1+—HHAQ
F1E %) A19,925,0007% 7T
—F—N%:7,298,500/%
L) R_E_EFR=_F
—NEFE+ZA=+—8"
BREBREREREERT
P miEHRR -

BEAN REERABE R
15 % AT W B 1 B9 ATl B AR
KRB DN R EEE D H
H(BREEEPNESR.
Wi m Mol E W R ER) B
EAREARERBNE
WE 5 MR FORE R

RETREBEZERERZA
Wi [a] 1 B - AR5 L R R UK
BERFXBVBEREESR
BHEEEREBHILRE
EERMMFEARZA
FEZEREE-

AEEREEFEERK

ZRERWE SRANEEE
LA TCETE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
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B 75 SR SR B L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b) Trade receivables arising from other

businesses

The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90
days (2019: 30 to 90 days) to its customers. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from
other course of business other than business
of dealing in securities transactions, based on
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0&30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H Mk

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice
a year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 are set out in note 6(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of the Group’'s trade
receivables arising from other business are
denominated in US$.

Amount due from a subsidiary’s director
of approximately HK$5,462,000 (2019:
HK$2,020,000) was included in the deposits,
prepayments and other receivables. The amount
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

20 ERESIRFI R HEMEY

FIE (#)

(b) HitXBEEZBWE

Z BRK

AEEXRTEEF30E90
H(ZZ— 1% :30890H)
ZEEH BREFRHE
EEBIINZEMERBIRE
EEZERE SRR (K
BER)BEBEEZAHZY

ZERE AT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
9,916 12,680
1,661 5,314
9,994 6,550
4,329 7,897
25,900 32,441

AEBREMNEFRFER
fMeErtdbmERPZEE
BXYHEREREFPZE
ERF -FEPEGHNEERER
BEFRIMIK-

RBE-—Z-2FR_-%
—h&F +-_A=+—81
FERWKE ZERERINRE
TEABE AR T ER
KHTFE6(C) ©

AEEBE LS
WE ZERMEEBENLE
TEEHE -

FEW— B RARZKRE
XIE 45,462,000 7T (=
T — L4 : 2,020,000/ 7T)
BErtARe FENREEHE
HERGRE -FENEREAE
KH 2ERFREREXRE
%o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE=-Z-TF+-A=+—-HLFE

21.LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. BERER
The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the EWERNERERDITIZFHE
remaining contractual maturity date: ARNER 2% :
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
0 - 90 days 0%290H 157,023 18,048
91 - 180 days 912 180H 50,267 35,294
181 — 365 days 181%365H 62,239 66,132
Over 365 days 365H KA E - 131,098
269,529 250,572
Less: Allowance for ECL B TBEEEBERE (100,934) (13,182)
168,595 237,390
The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money AEBZEBRERKRBHBESE
lending business. e
The loan receivables are repayable in accordance fﬂ&%ﬁ%’(ﬂ*ﬁ? S S
with the terms of the loan agreements and all loan HIEE ﬁﬁﬁ}EHQTJXTE’\ F
receivables are recoverable within 1 year (2019: 1 year). Hﬂl@ (ZE—-NF:—%F)-
The Group's loan receivables contain clauses which AEERBERHEERESR ﬁ%
reserved the right at sole discretion to demand REREMERERAEE
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of B N IR D Em R fA/\%’é
whether the borrowers have complied with the EETARBTREENER
covenants and met the scheduled repayment BiE-
obligations.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's loan receivables RZZE_FEF+-A=+—8"
are denominated in HK$ and carried at fixed effective $§'€E’\JF§WEMLA?§%HE
interest rate ranging from 8% to 10% (2019: 8% to REETEBRFNENF8% E
10%) per annum and with the terms of 1 to 2 years 10% (_25 NF: 8% ZE10% )
(2019: 1 to 2 years). AR CHEA—ZEZEMFE(ZE
—NE:—EMF) e
Movement in the allowance for ECL on loan BUERzAREEBER
receivables B E
Movement in ECL that has been recognised for loan HE-ZT-ZFR-ZT—NF
receivables in accordance with general approach set TZA=T—HLFE ERE
out in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31 December EAEUBMELNBEORET 2
2020 and 2019. Details of the ECL assessment are —ﬁﬁﬁxig’dﬁrﬂﬁl%\ﬂﬁﬁ 3 78 Bf
set out in note 6(c) to the consolidated financial EEBEZH- ﬁﬁﬂfmiéﬁéﬂé*
statements. MZFBEREE T B REM
#E6(c) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

2. BAFEFABEZZER

BE

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, A& Fh 2 AN %
at fair value - Q/NS I 61,050 39,880
The equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held REBLETZBRAZFTIAR
for trading purpose and are measured at FVTPL in SENMBEALREEETE
accordance with HKFRS 9. The investments in listed HEERFIRIZAFEF AR
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity AT E  RASEIREKREBEER
for return through dividend income and fair value BEWARRAFERZERSD
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. WO EMBRAFBLHRE -ZEXR
The fair values of listed securities are based on BEUWEEFIHAKES X L

current bid prices.

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances
— Segregated accounts for
dealing with clients’ money in
the ordinary course of business
— House accounts
Cash on hand

144 SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 7wkl AR AR

MEFNRFEIDERB RN

BEAEBEE-

23. B e RBITHE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
R1T 454
—MNEEEBBEFEE
EFEeZBIYERFP
5,620 8,532
—BEBERFP 21,553 30,111
FHEES 62 63
27,235 38,706




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

Represented by: =K
— Client accounts (note)
— House accounts

—BEERF

note:

As at 31 December 2020, include in bank balance - client
accounts of HK$5,620,000 (2019: HK$8,532,000) was
money deposited by clients in the course of business
of dealing in securities. The Group has recognised the
corresponding amount in trade payables (note 24). The
Group currently does not have a legally enforceable right
to offset these payables with deposit placed and use the
clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

RMB AR
AUD BT
uss$ X7
EUR X 7T
HK$ BT

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

—EPFERFP (&)

wra MR MR

E-BE+-ASt-ALEE

23. e RBITHEER (#)

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
5,620 8,532
21,615 30,174
27,235 38,706

Bet

NRZE—_EF+_A=+—8 &t
ANIRITHE 8 — K F R /5,620,000
7T (=Z— % :8,532,000/% 1)
BEPREBEFRZEBBIEFREA
MES AKEEERENFEZESER
RRESRABRE SR IA (Pf3E24) - A& B
WA AR MITHER - 7T A
FBRTFARSEEZEEMNERR
FREFHNRERBITEER

R|EHR NEB2RE MR
R N HIEEEHE

171

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
28 41

6 5

4,815 7,732

- 13
22,386 30,915
27,235 38,706

AR R B BINE TR BT H
B8 SN O I 1R ) R A T - B BEE K
NEEERE - AM AEEE
RFFRBEREILEINERS
MIRTHARBLBRSEME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

17 N =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2. ENEZRFARHEMEN

MIE
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it TER FHET
Trade payables arising from REFRGEBEBZ
the ordinary course of AEXBAIER
business of dealing FREE R RS
in securities transactions: B HHENR:
— Cash clients —HeEP 5,616 8,532
Trade payables from purchase of R Efh B & 7%
goods arising from other (BHERD
ordinary course of business, BEXBRKRIN
other than business of BIEFHEEEM
dealing in securities transactions  FfT 2 4 HY & 1~
g SRR 26,545 35,477
Other payables and EAh & RRIE K
accrued expenses s X 7,701 9,038
39,862 53,047

(a) Trade payables arising from the business

of dealing in securities

The trade payables balances arising from
the ordinary course of business of securities
brokerage services are normally settled in two
trading days after the trade date except for
the money held on behalf of clients at the
segregated bank accounts which are repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade
payables arising from the business of dealing in
securities are denominated in HKS$.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

(a) EEESEBMELED

P E 5 BRK

ERRERBEHBEER
BRRETMEENENE
HEREHR RN S A
HEMEKXZARER I
REPRBULRTERPLF
BZEGBREFEE-BAR
ARABEERR EREH
WE - RE DT ERRIME
B WY ERBEREDHT -

AEBEREEFEEEXED
ZENBZERFNKREE

LA TTEHE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(b) Trade payables arising from other

businesses

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on
the invoice date, is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0%30H

31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61Z90H
Over 90 days 90H K +

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges
from 30 to 60 days (2019: 30 to 60 days).

The carrying amount of the Group's trade
payable arising from other business are
denominated in US$.

Amount due to a securities broker of
approximately HK$968,000 (2019: Nil) was
included in other payables and accrued expenses,
bearing interest at 8.5% (2019: Nil) per annum
and repayable on demand.

2. ENEZRFARHEMEN
IE (#)

(b) EtRBEFAEEREN

R N

REZEHZENESK
RZEREBEDHT 2T

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
814 10,429

- 6,143

146 4,443
25,585 14,462
26,545 35,477

BEEREEHN T30
60H (ZZF— L% 30260
A) -

AEEREEMLELE S
4 % 5 B 2% 40 BF (B B4
TEEHE -

0 ERNBHLLARED
968,000/ 7T (ZF— L5 :
T)EFAEMERNKRER
EETB A ZFF*E8.5%
(ZE—NF T EAXfE

e
EREE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

Within one year
In the second to
fifth years, inclusive

Less: Future finance charges

Present value of
lease obligations

Less: Amount due for
settlement within

25.FHEAE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEAEMR BEEEAREAE
2020 2019 2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TRET TER TRET

—F R 682 2,351 675 2,251
E-FR
FRhE (R
BEME) - 487 = 482
682 2,838 675 2,733
B RBMKER (7 (105) N/AFER NATEH
HEEAHE
675 2,733 675 2,733

R 2@ AR

AR

12 months (shown S (NRH
under current liabilities) BEET
£35) (675) (2,251)
Amount due for settlement B2 A&
after 12 months HBEER
G| - 482
All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$. FrEHERBEHNEITTE.
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HAREEAENEEE XA
liabilities is 6.03% (2019: 6.03%). K B6.03% (20194 : 6.03% ) °

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes. For both
years, the Group leases an office for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 3 years (2019: 3 years) with no extension or
termination options. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

BANK LOAN

Secured bank loan

Scheduled payment terms of RITERZTE
bank loan contain a repayment on  {EHXA B E A
demand clause (shown under B KER MK

current liabilities):

Within one year

More than one year,
but within two years

More than two years,
but within five years

—FR

BHEMIRITERR

25.

26.

f
TA

(GIARBEB)

HEEE (&)

HRHEAFSENEESEENK
MR HE W I EENE
MR -HEEENTAIEREE
MERm-AREFEMS &
EERHEELHE—HMPAE-
HEARAOMBETHRA=F (=
T-NF =F) UEITEHKL
REREE - HEBRRTIIRER
EERER BRZBIRMGR KL
fig o T8 T AH B Ko BY AR S AT
CHFEORER AEBERSG
HWEEZ W BT A K AT 948 6
FTHY B -

B — I ETRBME

BEMFETBBOF

RITERK

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET

3,584 181

679 181

728 -

2,177 -

3,584 181
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26. BANK LOAN (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in HKS.

The average interest rate at 31 December 2020 was
6.07% (2019: 6.03%).

As at 31 December 2020 the Group’s bank loan
was guaranteed by (i) Mr. Ma Pun Fai, a director
of a subsidiary of the Company and (i) the HKMC
Insurance Limited of HK$3,420,000 (2019: Mr. Ma
Pun Fai, a director of a subsidiary of the Company).

The Group'’s bank borrowings contain clauses which
give the banks the right at their sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with
the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
loan covenants. Its repayments up to date are in
accordance with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans. The Group does not consider that the
banks will probably exercise their discretions to
demand repayments so long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 6(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

26.8R1ITEF (@)

AEBEENRTENE T
A

R-_E-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
B R AE6.07% (ZFE—h
F:6.03%) °

R_EBE-_FF+_A=+—H"
REBEZRITERTDAGOAR
A—ENBARIZ —REES
WEEER()BBEERIRRE
R A7 23,420,000 0 (=&
—NF:ARR—HHBRAZ
—ZEEEWELE)ER

AREBRITERAMFEFR D
wASRBERACETHRAERE
LBEBTTHEEMNEREE %M
wIRRATRITE2EBISER
SR AN £ B BB R XA A

AEBEHEREARTDEST
ERRwm-HEBERAAINERTD
BEHERNEREERET
AEERRRBASEEEEN
BRERE  BRITAKRAEETT
EHEEREFNHBEE - AEAN
SERBESRREENE -
THBHANGE W HRRM T
6(d) °



27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised

by the Group.

At 1 January 2019
Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 12)

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020 and
31 December 2020

27. EEBREBEEE
T AXREBRERNELTERE
BE-
Provision of
ECL
BHEE Tax losses Total
BREEE HIEEFAE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
RN_E-NF—H—H 979 181 1,160
AAKREEER
(Hfit12) - (181) (181)
RZZE-NF
+-A=t—8
k—E-_ZF—H—H
K—_E-%F
+-ZRA=1+—-8H 979 - 979

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$174,341,000
(2019: approximately HK$96,598,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Except for the tax losses of
approximately HK$5,851,000 (2019: approximately
HK$5,834,000) will be expired in 5 years from the
year of origination, the remaining tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

RS R NEE A 7] 4K
H1& R & A8 AR EAHIE
B8 #9174,341,0008 T (=
— L5 : #996,598,000/8 7T ) °
MR BB RO TER M
WERZEEERRELERE
& E o bR T IE B 18 495,851,000
BT (ZZ — L4 : 495,834,000
BT & B RRIRFE R AT E
HASN - 82 N IE 5 18 ] MR IR HR A
$§;o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R A
2020 2019
Number of
Number of ordinary
ordinary shares Amount shares Amount
EERYA £ LERE A &8
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TER T’ FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January, ordinary share of ~ A—A—H " 0.0003
HK$0.0003 BT ERR 2,000,000,000 600,000  2,000,000,000 600,000
Share consolidation (note J) Rina b (Hiti) (1,900,000,000) - - -
At 31 December, RW+-A=+-8"
ordinary share of HK$0.006 0.006/8 L 7 & @ 100,000,000 600,000  2,000,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January, ordinary share of A —H—H"0.0003
HK$0.0003 BT LBk 15,215,731 4,564 15,215,731 4,564

Share consolidation (note j) Bin &b (Hati) (14,454,944) = - -

Placing of shares (note i) BRIDEE (W) 152,150 913 - -

At 31 December, W+-A=+—-8"

ordinary share of HK$0.006 0.006/ 8 T2 & @R 912,937 5,477 15,215,731 4,564
notes: Bt -

(i)  Pursuant to ordinary resolution passed by shareholders () BERER-_ZF_ZTF=A
at extraordinary meeting of the Company on 24 ZTHMHHEHBTHEARRRE
March 2020, the Company effected the consolidation BRXE L@BMERRE
of the issued and unissued ordinary shares of the X RZEZZTEF=A=Z+RN
Company on the basis that every 20 ordinary shares H - ARARRE20REREAE

of HK$0.0003 each into one ordinary share of
HK$0.006 each on 26 March 2020. Details of the
share consolidation are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 February 2020, 6 March
2020 and 24 March 2020 respectively.

(i) On 5 August 2020, the Company and the placing
agent entered into the placing agreement pursuant
to which the placing agent has conditionally agreed
to place, on a best effort basis, to not less than six
placees, for up to 152,150,000 placing shares at
the placing price of HK$0.09 per placing share (the
“Placing”). The placing of new shares was completed
on 25 August 2020. The Group (the Company)
received net proceeds, after deducting the related
expenses (the placing comission (charged by an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and the other related expenses), from the Placing
amounted to approximately HK$13.7 million (HK$12.4
million).

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

(i)

0.00038 T EBERAEH A —
fi% /5 B T {E0.006 78 JT /9 I B A%
MEEETHRRBBEETR
RETERBRNEH - BRNDE
HRFBHRARF B SR
A-E_EF-_A-_+WMA-
TECEREF=ZARNHAEZZTC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently
by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to
reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are: (i) in order to maintain its listing
on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; (i) to meet
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings; and (iii) minimum capital and liquid
capital requirements by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Group complied with the above liquid
capital requirements.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the
non-public float and it demonstrates continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing borrowing for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

28. R A (&)

AREEREREANBEZRSR
EAEERBRENREIRE
BERECEHREDEERERR
[B] R &% KAE

AEEREERBEEEAKAN
Ko B 38 Bl AN 9 4H BE 2L B 2 B
BARRE - AEHEHBBIRKMNK
B BITHE D R B | BA K
BOHMER BERAEB XL
EEENRPEHHTAEF
B RBENER-

HNERE AR E B N 2 B A E K
B () BEFRRE TR LT
U -HEBRBNAREREAT
LD HI25% ¢ (i) i 2 5T B
fEEREMH MBI BRE: Ri) &
BEFRHEEHRERLZE S
RENREEARRBESE
j‘zo

HE-T-TFR-F-NF
+ZA=+T-RILFE A%E
EAT LRADEASER

rEESGHAERMBRERE
NEHEHFL2ZEREEHZ
FERMERBRE REBTRA
SERBE_ZT_TER=-F
—NF+Z_A=Z+—HBLEFE
N—HBENTA25% 2 FBRFE -

fief 32 2 B 95 22 5 - SR AT K5 AT AL B
WREE-RBEE_T_TFR
—ET-NAF+ZA=+—HBL
FE - ANEEILEEREMR
B8 2 B #25 °
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on
4 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible persons.

Under the Scheme, the Company’s board of
directors may, at its discretion, grant options to
eligible persons (including directors, employees and
consultants) to subscribe for the Company’s shares.

The exercise price of the share options under
the Scheme is determined by the directors of the
Company, and must be at least the higher of: (a) the
average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the relevant date of offer of the share
options; (b) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotations sheet on the relevant date of offer of the
share options, which must be a business day; and (c)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

29. DR B E W 2 K

IR EEE 2 B R ERT 2
REARABRERR-_T——_F
TAMBRTZBRRBFAE
EBBZIRFER  NARRMA—
HE R & ([&etE)) =
ZENENEBAERAL

REZAE ARAREFEAR
BRERAGERALT(BRE
= RELEMR) R TEREN
RBARERED -

ZETE 2B ETEERAR
FEFET YAELRUATR
2E QEEREEBRERD
B AEEXERBRIME
BMmEXRTEZARABDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Company's
shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options granted to any individual under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant of the share options must
not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing from the date of adoption of
the Scheme, after which no further share options
shall be granted but the share options which were
granted during the life of the Scheme may continue
to be exercisable in accordance with their terms
of issue and the provisions of the Scheme shall in
all other respects remain in full force and effect in
respect thereof. Share options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the period as the board of directors
may determine in granting the share options, but
in any event not exceeding ten years from the date
of grant. Share options granted under the Scheme
must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer.
Upon acceptance, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant of
the share option.

29. LR B ER 2 I (&)

IR AR 2 B IR 8
(&)

RIBZAAE LARNRBEME A
B S AR LM HEARTT
{82 BB R - AT IR A] T 31T
Bhhzimm8EEATGER
AREIAEEETRNDI0% -
REZBERERL B ZEMR
T EAMEA - TEREZA
&) R AN BT AA) E At B A AT
REMALTETERE (25
B BTERRARTEZE
Pt ) 31T e i§ T #IT 2D
B TR BBARE D BITI
1% %8l B AR A HE
AT FERDABR Nz A K
AN g BB IRE R &ET
AR H 2 BN A RIE
HEITHRBEE T TR M
R HREEMBEREMERA
EHNAETRRS - BREAR
EEEREBRESIRAEZ
HEANEREREREZTS 2
KT ATTE - Mtk B A2 (2 )
BRAH T BBEBER LA B
AT FER-REZIEL 2B
BEABRENBHEST TN
BAZ® - REMR ARAR
AARAX B TERERE
Mot 2 (K&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

S-EE+-ASt+-HLEE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The following table discloses the details of the
Company's share options and the movements during

the year ended 31 December 2020:

Category

£

Director

g%

Malcolm Stephen
JACOBS-PATON

Malcolm Stephen
JACOBS-PATON

Zhu Yugi

A7

Lu BeiLin

Ma Kin Ling

Bex

Employee

R
mo

Date of grant

Rred

10 December 2014

“5-IE
+ZAtH

8 May 2020

—E-F
E2-F
-7

RANA

8 May 2020

—-F-F
Z2°F
—-%-%

TLANA

8 May 2020

—-F-F
2°%F
—-%-%

RANA

8 May 2020

—-F-F
2-F
—%-%

RANA

10 December
2014

“5-IF
TZAtR

8 May 2020

—E-F
E2-F
—T—%

RANA

Adjusted
exercies
price per
share
a5g
gk
ik
(HKS)
(1)

3.5600

0.0780

0.0780

0.0780

0.0780

35600

0.0780

Exercise period

k8

10 December 2014 to
9 December 2020
ZE-RETZRTRE
ZEIRETCANA

8 May 2020 to
7 May 2022
“RIEERANRE
ZEIZEFRA<R

8 May 2020 to
7 May 2022

“E-FFRAtR

8 May 2020 o
7 May 2022
~3-3ERA/BE
“ECCEFRALR

8 May 2020 to
7Mwmn

ZERANR

::E;ﬂﬂta

10 December 2014 to
9 December 2020
T-ME+-F1HE
“E-EE+CRAB
8 May 2020 to
7 May 2022
“5-3ERANRE
CECCERALR

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

Notes

(@

&)

o)

(o)

)

)

&)

Outstanding
at 1.1.2020
et a3
-§-8
HATE

20,000,000

38,040,000

29. LR B ER 2 I (&)

Grant
during
the year

ERRY

7,607,000

7,607,000

7,607,000

7,607,000

45,642,000

L)\ Hﬁ *E n\l:l
(&)

BE2BREE

TERBEARRBE-_ZT_F
Ft+-_A=+t—BLFEZE

P e Ko HBA B AT
Cancelled/
Exercise  Effect of share lapsed
during  consolidation during
the year (note f) the year
RHast
Pi
Enhfif (fif)  Fhi#/ 53
- 19,000,000 (1,000,000)
- - (7,607,000)
- (36,138,000) (1,902,000)

Outstanding
at 31.12.2020
e et 22
TZA=1-A
WA

7,607,000

7,607,000

7,607,000

45,642,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme

(continued)
Category Date of grant
£l REAH
Consultants 10 December
2014
E) —5-mE
TZATA
17 April 2019
S k3
AttA

Exercisable at the end of the year
EXAGHE

Weighted average exercise price
METHHRE

Adjusted

exercies

price per

share Exercise period Notes
a3e

gR

ik Gk it
(HKS)

(%7)

35600 10 December 2014 to ©
9 December 2020
ZE-ME+ZATHE
ZEIRETCANA
04720 17 April 2019 0 @
16 April 2021
“E-NEMATCRE
ZEC-FMATAE

2. UR B AER 2R (#)
IR AR 2 B IR 8

(&)
Cancelled/
Grant Exercise  Effect of share lapsed
Outstanding during during  consolidation during  Outstanding
at 1.1.2020 the year the year (note f) theyear  at 31.12.2020
it et 32 hradt H-2-8%
-A-A e tZRZt-8
HATE EREY EnfTE ( ERE#/ &0 HATR
202,880,000 - - 192,736,000) (10,144,000) -
1,521,500,000 - - (1,445,425,000) - 76,075,000
1,782,420,000 76,070,000 - (1,693,299,000) (20,653,000) 144,538,000
144,538,000
(Restated)
(&E7)
HKSO.930E T  HKS0.0780% T HK$0.2854 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 47

{157



158

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 29. IR B E® 2 4R (80
Equity-settled share option scheme UREEE 2 BRETTE
(continued) (%)

Cancelled/
Exercies Grant Exercise [apsed
price per Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Category Date of grant share  Exercise period Notes at 1.1.2019 the year the year theyear  at31.12.2019
RZg-ng
gk -A-H RZ2-1E128
25l RHRH ik k= it HAGE ERil ERfTE  EREE/AN St-RMAME
(HKS)
(Em)
Director
L]
Malcolm Stephen 10 December 2014 0.1780 10 December 2014 to (@) 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
JACOBS-PATON 9 December 2020
Malcolm Stephen  —Z—TL% ZZ-METZATHE
JACOBSPATON ~ TZATA “ECRETCANA
Employee 10 December 2014 01780 10 December 2014 to ol 38,040,000 - - - 38,040,000
9 December 2020
EE Z3-[f ZE-EETZATRE
tZATH “ECRETCANA
Consultants 10 December 2014 0.1780 10 December 2014 to (© 202,880,000 - - - 202,880,000
9 December 2020
ER Z3-[f ZE-EETZATRE
tZATH “ECRETCANA
17 April 2019 0.0236 17 April 2019 1o (0 - 1,521,500,000 - - 1,521,500,000
16 Aer 01
ZI-0F ZE-NERATHEE
BATtA ZR-E@ATRA
260,920,000 1,521,500,000 - - 1,782,420,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,782,420,000
ERAfH
Weighted average exercise price (nofe /) HKSO.1780% T HKS0.0236%7T HK$0.04655 0

MEFHRE (Hir)

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

notes:

(a)

Out of the 405,400,000 options granted on 10
December 2014, a total of 126,800,000 options are
vested in 5 tranches as to (i) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2015 up to 9 December 2020; (ii) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2016 up to 9 December
2020; (iii) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2017
up to 9 December 2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2018 up to 9 December 2020; and (v)
20% exercisable from 10 December 2019 up to 9
December 2020; and a total of 278,600,000 options
are exercisable from 10 December 2014 up to 9
December 2020. As a result of the share consolidation
as set out in note 28(i), the exercise price of the share
options was adjusted from HK$0.1780 per share
to HK$3.5600 per share with effect from 26 March
2020.

A total of 38,040,000 options are vested in 5 tranches
as to (i) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2015 up
to 9 December 2020; (ii) 20% exercisable from 10
December 2016 up to 9 December 2020; (iii) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2017 up to 9 December
2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2018
up to 9 December 2020; and (v) 20% exercisable
from 10 December 2019 up to 9 December 2020.
As a result of the share consolidation as set out in
note 28(i), the exercise price of the share options was
adjusted from HK$0.1780 per share to HK$3.5600 per
share with effect from 26 March 2020.

wra MR MR

ToBF+-A=t+-ALEE

29. LR B ER 2 I (&)

DR AR 2 B Est &l
(#)
Hf iz -

(a)

RZE—WF+_A+HFER
i 2 405,400,0001) B A% 4 &
oA 126, 800 L0001 B A%
IO AREE - ()20% °AJ R
:5\_£E|5+ ﬂ—'—El:I:—?
—EFE+ AN BHMITE:

(i)20% AR T —XNF+ =
Bt+EE-_ZE-_ZTF+=-Ah
BHIM 1T (iii)20% AT A —

T—t+tF+-_A+HE=-Z
—“EFE+ - ANBHMITE:
(iv)20% AR =ZZE— \F+ =
A+RE-_Z-_ZH&+_-_AA
HESE 176 & (v)20% AT TR —
T-NF+_A+BE=-ZT=
TE+ - ANBERETE: N
& $£278,600,00017 3 % #
AR-—_E—NE+_A+HZE
—E-EE+ A NB BT
i o B A B E28() FREBX 19 &

g BT _FTF=A
“HRAE BREZITEE

HER0.1780B THE BB R
3.5600/8 JT °

& $£38,040,00017 B JE#E Ty
AMBEB ()20% RN _E—H
F+_A+RE_ZT_ZTF
+=Z AR BEBBETE: ()20%
—.l-b_/\\— /\ﬂz—'——ﬂ—'—ai
—E-EF+Z ANBEETT
B (iii)20% AR T — L F
T+ A+HEE_ZE_ZTF+=
RALBEIREIFTE : (iv)20% AT R
—E-N\F+=-_A+RE=Z
—EF+ - ANBEETE:
FW20% AR —E—hFE+ =
A+H=Z2=_ZE-_2F+_-_Ah
HEAR1TE: A EAWEEZS(') Ffr
BERHheMzEE B
Ei_ﬂ_+ﬂai,%k%
21T EE R ER0.1780/8 T
B AFRK3.56008 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

Notes.: (continued)

(0

Out of the 824,560,000 options granted on 10
December 2014, a total of 469,160,000 options are
vested in 5 tranches as to (i) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2015 up to 9 December 2020; (ii) 20%
exercisable from 10 December 2016 up to 9 December
2020; (iii) 20% exercisable from 10 December 2017
up to 9 December 2020; (iv) 20% exercisable from
10 December 2018 up to 9 December 2020; and (v)
20% exercisable from 10 December 2019 up to 9
December 2020; and a total of 355,400,000 options
are exercisable from 10 December 2014 up to 9
December 2020. As a result of the share consolidation
as set out in note 28(i), the exercise price of the share
options was adjusted from HK$0.1780 per share
to HK$3.5600 per share with effect from 26 March
2020.

1,521,500,000 options granted on 17 April 2019 are
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing
price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the grant date of the share options on 17
April 2019 was HK$0.0230 per share. As a result of
the share consolidation as set out in Note 28(i), the
exercise price of the share options was adjusted from
HK$0.0236 per share to HK$0.4720 per share with
effect from 26 March 2020.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

2. UR B AER 2R (#)
IR AR 2 B IR 8
(&)

Hrat: (%)

(@)

RZE—NWFE+-_A+HMK
1 2824,560,00017 B A% # &
b & 469,160,000 B &
BTy AHEE : (1)20% AT R
—EF+ - ANBEBITE:
(i20% AR —_E— R "F+=
A+HZEZZE-_ZEF+=A
H B ERITE (i) 20% 7]
—E—+tF+ZA+RE=ZZ
—EF+ - ANBEETE:
(iV)20% IR —ZZFE—NF+ =
A+HE-_Z-_ZF+-8A
HHEIRITEE & (v)20% AT Y =
T-NF+RAR+RE=ZZ=
TE+-ANBHBEITE: A
& & #355,400,0001) 88 A% 4
AR—ZE—NF+-_A+AHZE
ZE-TF+ZANABMET
15 o /B AP 51 28() PRELAR 19 &
e B2 F= A
—t+NHR EREZTEE
I &A%0.17808 T AL AT MK
3.5600/8 T °

RZE-NFHA+AME
i 21,521,500,00017 & A% ##
ERREBHEESGEE 26
ERERHABHZAAR AR
MR=ZFE—NAFWLA+EBHEZ
Y {8 A& K0.0230/8 T M
T 5E28() FT & Bk 10 & B 2 &
2 - FT-_FTF=A -+
B BEREZTFEERER
0.0236/8 L8 # A5 0.4720
BT e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE=-Z-TF+-A=+—-HLFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 29. LR AER 2K (&
Equity-settled share option scheme UREEE 2 BRETE
(continued) (&)

(e) 76,070,000 options granted on 8 May 2020 are () RZE-_ZEFRANHFAEHL
immediately vested at the date of grant. The closing 2.76,070,00017 B e 7 B A 1%
price of the shares of the Company immediately L EHEIRGE - ZhERERE
before the grant date of the share options on 8 May BREBEBZAIARARRMHRZ
2020 was HK$0.078 per share. TZZTFRANBZKRTESR

FRZ0.07878 7T

(f) The effect of share consolidation as set out in note fy MEFHTEEZTERE
28(i) had been excluded in calculation of weighted R FE28() FTE M At 2 &
average exercise price. 2o

No share option was exercised during the years REBE_Z_FTFR-_FT—H

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The options FH+-_A=+—BHULEFEILE

outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted BEIREEITR -RNEREAKRIT
average remaining contractual life of 1 year (2019: FBERENMETLAFS®RE

1 year). On 8 May 2020, 76,070,000 (2019: WERA—F(ZZEE—NF:

1,521,500,000) sharer options with fair value of —F) RZZE_FTFHAN

HK$2,520,000 (2019: HK$16,737,000) were granted. H: 76,070,000 (=& — 1L

£ :1,521,500,00010 ) A F & 5B
2,520,000 T (ZE— N F:
16,737,000 7)) < R ##EE &

B -

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial EZ%“QZETJ@FH — I
Option Pricing model. The inputs into the model are EERIEE 2RI H 8 A B
as follows: S NE

2020 2019
Weighted average share price niEFHR(E 0.0780 0.0230
Weighted average exercise price NEFTEE 0.0780 0.0236
Expected volatility T8 B 18 85% 93.69%
Expected life ?Ei\%ﬁ'ﬁ,ﬁﬂ 2 2
Risk free rate [ i 7 0.37% 1.69%
Expected dividend yield i‘EHﬂ I B W K 0% 0%
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. The assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on management’s best estimate. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There was no market vesting condition or non-
market performance condition associated with the
options granted.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives
for helping the Group expand its business network,
acquire and explore new business projects and
opportunities. The fair value of service received
in return for share options granted could not be
estimated reliably and as a result, the fair value is
measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

29. LR B ER 2 I (&)

LIRS E 2 B RERT S
(&)

T8 HA IR 0 AR SRR A AR (&
TA B P #E DN 4 1 35 I 64 4 A &
) URELAFHAMAEEMNE
HA R ROR 08 3R B (E (] S E) 1
HH FEEE o TR AR B TS AR 52 AR B
REE- ARG EBRENRF
BERROENEEENREM
it TEBBRAZBEBERNEMME
fERIBXRFERLEBEMG -

BEESREBREMARNT
55 BRI RIETIHRIRIGRMT -

BETERZBREDERNS
EOAEEBBAERBHESL WK
BLRMEHEBERE BN
B RIEE BRI
B AR5 8~ F{E T BEA] Se 1
it Bl A FEDEZ2EDR
HBREN AT EFE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30. XD A Z B AR R R AR
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BB E
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AR Tz AR T
Company
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKE 178 178
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and Ze BNRIER
other receivables H b e U 58 1,591 2,367
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NI ENGIE ¢ 94,004 80,710
Cash and bank balances & MIRITEE R 1,228 943
96,823 84,020
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and FEET R X &
other payables H o T 5K IR 3,851 4,354
Amounts due to JE - B BB A B FRIE
subsidiaries 34,636 34,596
38,487 38,950
Net current assets REBEEZFE 58,336 45,070
Net assets EEFH 58,514 45,248
Capital and reserves R # e
Share capital [N 5,477 4,564
Reserves M 53,037 40,684
Total equity BmER 58,514 45,248
The financial statements were approved and BHEHRERER_TE=_—F=H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on “tThBEEEgHERKRE
25 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf HED - W THEEFREREE:
by:
ZHU Yuqi CHOW Hei Yin Terry
KFEH BB
Director Director
EH EZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30. KRB 2 M BERRER R
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BHEE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(b) Reserve movement in the Company (b) XA B 2 #EEE
Share
Share  Contributed options
Premium surplus reserve

RiEE AABR  BRERS
(note 31(b)  (note 31(b)  (note 31(b)

) (i) (v)  Accumulated
(W) (WEsim)  (HE30) losses Total
(i) (i) ) iR aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TET TiET TET

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A 57,856 522,104 6,864 (547,523) 39,301
Loss and total comprehensive income REEEERZENRAE

for the year - - - (15,648) (15,648)
Recognition of equity-settled share BRURAEETARG

based payments (note 33(3)) BER AR (H#336) - - 17,031 - 17,031
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 H=F-AE+ZA=+-H

R-Z-%£-A-A 57,856 522,104 23,89 (563,171) 40,684

Loss and total comprehensive income TEEBERZENREE

for the year - - - (2,604) (2,604)
Placing of shares (note 28)i) RORE (H2280)) 12,437 - - - 12437
Share options lapsed Eﬁﬂﬂé%ﬁl - - (7.419) 7.419 -
Recognition of equity-settled share ERURFLEL R

based payments (note 33(3)) BERINR (Wi336) - - 2,520 - 2,520
At 31 December 2020 RZE-BET-A=T-A 70,293 522,104 18,996 (558,356) 53,037
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(1)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share and
after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares. Pursuant to the
Companies Law of the Bermuda, funds in
the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other capital reserve

Other capital reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital and the share premium
of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition.

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—

E-BE+-ASt-ALEE

(a) ~EE

AEBEEBELEREE
RERA R H 2 E

%&KH/\¢§\7%¥'@J%£

(b) RBEZ2HERBEMN
(i) K17 E

R aEENERESR
BREEZERETR
BB IR E AL 3T
NI BITR AT E £
ZHEB - REABRER
AE AR RIRMDRE
EMESAIDEKTAR
AR EEEEES
K EH ARQRIAE
BE—MREBBEFRE
B2 BT

(i) Bt ELXEE

HMEARFHERHIERA
SEWENBARZHE
(RN=NCI A &N 32 §7)
i EEEEERKREZ
REMHEITHRAEE
ZE®B-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

31. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of
the share capital issued by the Group and
the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to
the reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(v) Share options reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and consultants of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(o) to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

31 f#f&E (|)
(b) FEEZ2HEEREHN (&)

(iif) A & R

BMABBNEARED
BHITRAHMERRES
#H 25 18 X 3 i A W B Y
MEAREEFENE
B e

(iv) 25t i

BEHEREMARER
BRI RBMBRERE
) SNE ZHE o L
RIFERE M HRRM T
A(b) AT A & 5T R BE
B e

(v) FERER1E

BRERBLIRRT
AEEES EENME
BARTTEBBENE R
HAEET BB R TE
RIFARE MR
4(0) A AR EE B0
il 2 NRPTRAE S
ATIBUR AR -



32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

. ARFRETEMBATZHF

]
Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company at KRBl EEWNB R AR EH
RZFBEHINBT -

the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Name of subsidiary

WEAFER

Directly held: B 15 -

China Guoxin SunCorp Financial
Holdings Limited
PEACHESRERARAR

EXCEL GAINER LIMITED

SunCorp Group Limited

Suncorp Life Technologies
Limited

HELENRERAA

Suncorp Investment Holdings

Limited

TALENT MILLION LIMITED

WELL SMOQTH LIMITED

Place of Proportion ownership
incorporation  Class of interest held
and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
A fis ki share capital ~ ALFHEZEEE  Principal activities
REEHH g5l ERfTRE E&iLh IEXH

2020 2019
British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Island ("BVI")
RERAES(IR EAR E3p RERR
REZEE))
BvI Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ZERUEE  EBR 10,000%70 REBR
BvI Ordinary U5$59,524 100% 100% Investment holding
ZERUEE  EBR 59.54%T REBRR
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Bk Lk 1,007 RELK
BVI Ordinary US$100 100% 100% Investment holding
ABEEE  HER 100%7 RERK
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding and

management

B LRk 10,0007 RABREER
BvI Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
XBRLEE  EER 10,000% 70 REBR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 38 167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GeaMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL .EARFEEMBLRT 27

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&)
(continued)

Place of Proportion ownership

incorporation  Class of interest held

and operations  shares held Issued by the Company
Name of subsidiary A fis ki share capital ~ ALEHEZEEE  Principal activities
WEAFAR REEnY g5l ERfTRE B IERH

2020 2019

Indirectly held: E##E -

SUNCORP GLOBAL LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Trading of telephones and
related products
HERKARAA BE Lk BT SENEBERES
Worldwide Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HKS 1 100% 100% Processing and trading of
(Hong Kong) Limited used computer-related
components
RESTHR (BR)ARAR &R Lk 1T “FERABENRER
CASHCOW FINANCE (HK) LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Money lending business
PRiEE (BR)BRAR B LRk 10,000,000% ¢ RERHE
Suncorp Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$76,000,000 100% 100% Provision of securities

brokerage, placing and
underwriting services

HREFERAT Bk Rk 76,000,000% ¢ RUEHEL RER
BiRS

BILLION MAX INTERNATIONAL  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100% 100% B2B cross-border

LIMITED e-commerce

BEERERAT &k LRk 1007 CEULEERETER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group ARRESRAE LRV AE

which, in the opinion of the directors of the ErMBARIEHAER ZXE

Company, principally affected the results or assets REEELEFTEXE - KARA]

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries EE2ER JIHEMKERF]

would, in the opinion of the directors of the ZHE KRR ILK °

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt RELRSNFENEEER B
securities at the end of the year, or at any time NE Y EBRTEMERES -

during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

3B.EEHERERWE

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transaction

Equity-settled share-based payment

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
equity-settled share-based payment expense
of approximately HK$2,520,000 (2019:
approximately HK$17,031,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flow were, or future
cashflows will be classified in the Group's
consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

(a)

(b)

ERFRERS

KRG E R B ER
Z &

HE_ZT_ZTF+ = A
=+ —BLEFE UBRAR
BERNDBERZFHKFA
S #97/2,520,0005%8 7T ( —
T —F 417,031,000
BIL) IR FEERR PR

N
=7
e ©

MEXBEE2AEY
iR

TRALAEEKRARE
XBNABEEY BRAR
KIFER &2 - B8 EET
EENBELNAAEEZRE
ERHARAKRRESBEHR
AEBEGEEREREXRNRN
DHEREARIELEZA

& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

or B BB R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

At 1 January 2020

Interest charged
Interest paid
COVID-19 Related rent
concessions received
Financing cash flows

At 31 December 2020

NZE-_FTF—H—H

B UER F) 8
BF 2

2 UrCoVID-1918 &
AeRe
BERERE

JiN

1A
[ A

AZE-EFE
+=A=+-8

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

B.EEHEREBRME (&

(b) REXBELE2EREY

BR (&)
Lease
Bank loan liabilities Total
BITEX HEEE Mst
(note 26) (note 25)
(Ki3sE26) (Bt3E25)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FETT FETT
181 2,733 2,914
90 98 188
(90) (98) (188)
- (67) (67)
3,403 (1,991) 1,412
3,584 675 4,259




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementg,
GeaMBHmEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 3B.HAEBEERERMET (&)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEXBELE2EEY

financing activities (continued) i (&)
Advance
drawn
on hill
receivables
discounted
with full
recourse
AxE2
lease MBZEZ
Bank loan liabilities MEWHRZ Total
BITER HEREE BB @it
(note 26) (note 25)
(Htit26) (Hti#25)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-A—H 879 - 973 1,852
Impact on initial N EREB BN
application of AR 165% 8
HKFRS 16 2 - 4,856 - 4,856
Restated balance RZE-NE—A
at 1 January 2019 R 879 4,856 973 6,708
Interest charged B & 33 229 - 262
Interest paid B FIE (33) (229) - (262)
Financing cash BERERE
flows (698) (2,123) (973) (3,794)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+ZHA=+—H 181 2,733 - 2,914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMFRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement
of cash flows for lease comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows BRELHE N
Within financing cash flows BREER &M

HHIHJ Hmlm

These amounts relate to the following:

Lease rental paid ENHEERS

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

3. EBRERERMET (&)

()

HEZRERHERE

AR EHRERERRNE
FEJ%H,\E’JJ—:E BIENAT &
15 -

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
98 229

1,991 2,123
2,089 2,352

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
2,089 2,352




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Suncorp
Industrial Limited (in liquidation) (“SIL"), a former
subsidiary of the Company, through its solicitors
served on two wholly-owned, inactive subsidiaries
of the Company (namely, Mondial Communications
Limited ("MCL") and Suncorp Communications
Limited (“SCL")), statutory demands for repayment
of an amount of HK$91,177,872 allegedly due from
MCL to SIL and an amount of HK$128,785,748
allegedly due from SCL to SIL. Both MCL and SCL
denied the indebtedness allegedly due from them to
SIL as claimed in the statutory demands. By Court
Order dated 1 June 2011, the liquidators of SIL were
sanctioned to take out legal proceedings in the name
and on behalf of SIL against the Company, MCL
and/or SCL. The Company had disposed of its entire
interest in MCL and SCL in April 2014. According
to Form 98, Notice to Creditors and Contributories
of Interntion to Apply for Release, Destruction of
Books of Accounts and Documents and Dissolution
of the Company, dated on 8 November 2019, SIL has
submitted their application to finalise the liquidation,
and based on Written Resolutions of the Committee
of Inspection, the application has been approved.
No legal expenses has incurred during the reporting
period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant
contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

3. HAREE

nEE-_ZT——%+ = A
=+—HIEFE FREEER
~El(FEF) ([FREXE]
HARNRRZAMBAR) @A
HEMRAARAGMEEETE
Brz2EWBAR (DB ES
BABRAG ([BERBAM])
RFEBAERAA ([HEE
RDxFEEATERKEGE B
SKEMATHRIA: EHEEERRA
AER FTEE X 291,177,872
PE TR - DA K 5 TR T e B AT e
¥ HEE ¥ 2128,785,7488 7T
HIE-BERBALNBEENYG
BRAEACERERERMER
BERBARTEBANENST
NHREEXCEE-RERBAC
T——FXRXA—HZERDS
MEEE BB AR EUTE
BEECZRERRERAARG B
ERBAL/KHEBARELR
FERF-ARABER-_ZE
FMAREERBERBAK
B 2 ER - RIE R
AE-E-NEFE+—ANBE#H
BEREARNEABERBFESR
AR E R S R EBEREAR QA
MENFBR HTEEXER
REAFEZEEE RBEREZ
BEEgMEEARR BHEDENR
N BEME T EELELRZE
)Eﬁo

B E X IREEE N RS
R AEEITEERIRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not yet incurred are as
follows:

Property, plant and equipment

36. OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2020, the Group entered into a
new lease for a office that is not yet commenced,
with non-cancellable period of three years and
eight months (2019: Nil) with an extension options,
the total future undiscounted cash flows over the
non-cancellable period amounted to approximately
HK$4,200,000 (2019: Nil).

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management
personnel

Key management personnel are the directors of the
Company. The remuneration of key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits %2 Hi 2 A

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

35. EAREKIE
RBEMKRBENBMAESE
CEREENT:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FiET
2,314 —

36. BEHE
REEBERAEHEA

RZEZFEF+_HA=+—H"
REBEFFT—HE KRR
REFHE TAREEAH =
FRERBANEA(ZZE—N
FoE) TAIBEBEZRER
AR3R I8 & 7t 2 8 §E 494,200,000
BT (ZE—NFE)-

37V.EALRS

Brir & B 1% 3k H A 20 9 BT 4%
BLABEANTRG RESHIN K
EEFRNEBEATHRSN
T

EEES Z F

EREZEREARAREERE B

RERFARZFHHAT :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
2,253 2,009




38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wra MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ-—Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development
of, and the disruption to business and economic
activities caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position, cash
flows and operating results of the Group. Given the
dynamic nature of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of its
impacts on the Group’s financial position, cash flows
and operating results at the date on which these
financial statements are authorised for issue.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 March 2021.

38.

39.

BEMREE

RZZE_FFY)IEZECOVID-19
% — RZHHIE RIS EEE R
PIREBEENEBE R ~AEE—
B2 ) COVID-19% 15 /) 3
RUAREHEBREBELESE
PRE R E Wt ARNEEE
B ReERERLCEEEE
R EERCOVID-19% 1B
WENREME NIRRT % ER
Bk B EXRESEMGE
HEAEET KRR RERE
RIS EFKBERNTE -

HESSUHERR

BEecCR_ETE-_—F=A
TtTHEMRERKRERMES
B ISRk

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 47

175



176

Financial Summary

£

For the year ended 31 December

BZ+-HA=1t-HLEE

Bt 5 11 2=

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ—Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE
RESULTS

Revenue Wi

Loss for the year AEEEBE

Attributable to: THALER:

Owners of the Company N/NSE 2N

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities reE
Net assets FEE

Equity attributable to owners of 72 E% B AFELG
the Company s

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED #7RERI% B R A7)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET THER
263,523 350,043 223,749 202,546 173,692
(52,352)  (217,084) (24,842) (42,766) (70,107)
(52,352) (217,084) (24,842) (42,766) (70,107)
EERAEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-B=+-H

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TERT
655,391 423,897 436,572 364,901 299,153
(62,822) (54,356) (96,853) (55,976) (44,121)
592,569 369,541 339,719 308,925 255,032
592,569 369,541 339,719 308,925 255,032




Suncorp

HrEERH AR A F

SUNCORP TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
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